
MEETING AGENDA 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION POLICY BOARD 

4:00 p.m., Wednesday, September 23, 2020 

This Meeting will be conducted using video and phone conferencing, visit http://campo.tjpdc.org/committees/policy-
board/ for connection instructions.  

Item Time† Description 
1. 4:00 – 

4:05 Call to Order 

2. 4:05-
4:15 

Matters from the Public: limit of 3 minutes per speaker 
Public are welcome to provide comment on any transportation-related topic, including the items 
listed on this agenda, and/or comment during items marked with an * 

3. 4:15-
4:25 

Public Participation Plan* 
• Public Participation Plan Memo
• Draft Public Participation Plan
• Public Participation Plan Public Hearing

4. 4:25-
4:30 

General Administration * 
• Review and Acceptance of the Agenda *
• Reschedule November 25, 2020 Meeting *
• Approval of July 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes *

5. 4:30-
4:45 

Formal resolution for MPO Smart Scale Application * 
• Smart Scale Resolution MPO Submission for Fontaine Ave Project
• Fontaine Concept Sketch

6. 4:45-
5:05 

Discussion 
• Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment Memo
• Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment Scope

7. 5:05-
5:20 

Discussion 
• Process and Use of Committees in Development of Smart Scale Projects Memo

8. 5:20-
5:45 

Staff updates 
• MPO 2020 Annual Report
• Update Title VI Plan Draft
• TIP Administrative Adjustment Memo

9. 5:45-
5:50 

Items Added to the Agenda 

10. 5:50-
6:00 

Additional Matters from the Public 
Members of the Public are welcome to provide comment (limit of 3 minutes per speaker) 
Adjourn 

† Times are approximate * Requires a vote of the Board

Upcoming Meeting Dates: 
• To Be Determined (November 25, 2020 4:00 p.m.)

http://campo.tjpdc.org/committees/policy-board/
http://campo.tjpdc.org/committees/policy-board/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL NOTICE 
 
 

MPO Policy Board Meeting 
4:00 p.m. Wednesday, September 23, 2020 

 

The Governor has declared a state of emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the nature of 
this declared emergency makes it impracticable or unsafe for the CA-MPO Policy Board to assemble 

in a single location.  This meeting and the required public hearings will be held utilizing electronic 
virtual communication with the Zoom software application. In accordance with virtual meeting 

procedures and policies as outlined in Item 4.0-01 of the Virginia state budget (HB 29), as effective 
April 24, 2020. The meeting will be recorded and made available to the public at www.tjpdc.org.  

 
 
 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84701091920?pwd=V3FxQi9wRVIzNTNvR08yQWl5OU53QT09  
 

Meeting ID: 847 0109 1920 
Passcode: 975419 

 
Dial in: 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

 

http://www.tjpdc.org/


Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 

 

 

 
Memorandum 

 
 
To: MPO Committee Members 
From: Sandy Shackelford, Director of Planning & Transportation 
Date: September 4, 2020 
Reference: Public Participation Plan 
 
Purpose:  
 
MPOs are required to comply with federal regulations to ensure that there are adequate public 
participation opportunities for the public when developing and adopting planning documents.  The 
Public Participation Plan is the document the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO uses to communicate the 
strategies that will be utilized to satisfy those requirements.   
 
This Plan is intended to provide as much flexibility as possible in meeting the requirements established in 
the federal regulations.  The TJPDC as an organization, which includes the MPO operations, is committed 
to exceeding the minimum requirements and developing meaningful public engagement opportunities 
for the public, considering the diversity of needs and preferences throughout the MPO area.   
 
Background:  
 
The current Public Participation Plan was last updated in 2016 and is in need of revision.  A summary of 
the proposed changes is listed below:  

• Updating references to Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (TJPDC) reports and News 
Briefs to reflect current practices.  

• Including procedures for electronic meetings when authorized.  

• Updating sections on accessibility for people with disabilities and non-English speakers. 

• Updating plans for communicating with traditionally underserved communities.  

• Generalizing the committee membership to remove references to specific individuals.  
 
The draft of the Public Participation Plan included in your packets reflect all of these recommended 
changes.  This is an initial opportunity for the MPO committees to review the document and provide 
feedback.  The federal regulations require that there be a 45-day public comment period prior to any 
significant changes to the plan being made.  This comment period commenced following the MPO Policy 
Board meeting in July and will commence on September 10, 2020.   
 
MPO staff took the following actions to make the public aware of the opportunity to provide feedback:  

• Updated the CA-MPO website with a link to the Public Participation Plan, a summary of changes, 
and staff contact information.  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 

 

 

 

• Posted boosted Facebook advertisements to reach populations in the MPO region. 

• Shared the information with the MPO committee members for them to disseminate at their 
discretion.  

• Utilized the Albemarle County and City of Charlottesville Public Relations departments to 
disseminate information.  

 
At the date this memo is being prepared, staff received two comments from the public that are 
attached for your review.  Staff also received a request from Jaunt to update references throughout 
the document (changing “JAUNT” to “Jaunt” and removing the reference to “Jefferson Area United 
Transit” from the acronym table) and add them to the 5307 plan in Appendix B to establish that they 
will be using the Transportation Improvement Program to satisfy public engagement and public 
hearing requirements.  Those changes are reflected in the draft of the Public Participation Plan 
included in the packet.   
 
In compliance with the Public Participation Plan guidelines, a public hearing has been advertised for 
the MPO Committee meeting on September 23rd, 2020.   

 
Recommendation:   
 
It is the request of staff that the MPO Technical Committee and Citizens Transportation Advisory 
Committee review the draft plan and the public comments and provide a recommendation to the 
Policy Board for consideration at their meeting on September 23rd, 2020.   
 
It is the request of staff that the MPO Policy Board conduct the scheduled public hearing and take one 
of the following actions:  

1. Approve the current draft of the Public Participation Plan (draft date of 9-4-2020).  
2. Approve the Public Participation Plan with amendments. 
3. Delay the approval of the Public Participation Plan and provide staff with specific direction on 

revisions that you would like made prior to reconsideration.  
 
If there are any questions or comments, please contact Sandy Shackelford at sshackelford@tjpdc.org.   

mailto:sshackelford@tjpdc.org


Dear TJPDC,  
 
per guidance - announced by Albemarle County -  
 
Public comments on the proposed changes to the Plan are being accepted through September 
10th, 2020. Comments and questions on the Plan can be directed to Sandy Shackelford 
at sshackelford@tjpdc.org.    
 
I am providing brief comments on the Charlottesville-Albemarle Metro Planning Organizations' 
'public participation plan'.  
 
Because I note apparent serious omissions in the plan regarding proper attention to THE 
ELDERLY AND AGING I have copied JABA and hope the JABA and JABA partners will send 
comments.  
 
Because I note apparent serious omissions in the plan regarding BURDENS ON THE CLIMATE 
and other biological/ecological systems I have copied the Climate Collaborative and hope that 
the CCC and CCC partners will send comments.  
 
Because I note apparent serious omissions in the plan regarding the role of taxpayers and 
feepayers I have copied the Free Enterprise Forum and hope that it and its partners will send 
comments.  
 
My comments, per your solicitation, are below: 
 
A LOT is missing and very strangely so! 
 
These omissions include that 
 
a. the proposed plan exhibits NO ATTENTION to the unique, special and/or complex 
transportation needs of THE ELDERLY and those with increasing infirmities and challenges 
AGING, nor to their caregivers. As much or more than many they needs affordable, effective 
and efficient transportation systems.  They - as all others do - need SAFETY when encountering 
and using transportation systems.  As we now see in pandemic times  - with disease spreading 
from public transportation contacts - and as we see in violent times - with city buses set on fire, 
mass civil unrest contrary to safety of frail elderly, persons with special needs, and other 
pedestrians and public transportation users in Richmond and other cities -  public participation 
in the systems and public participation in discussing the systems REQUIRES TRUST!  Where is 
building and sustaining TRUST discussed? 
 
b. the proposed plan exhibits NO FOCUSED ATTENTION to the needs, interests, and concerns of 
riders and users of metropolitan area transportation FROM RURAL AREAS, including  

1. the THOUSANDS of rural area residents coming into the metro area daily FOR WORK.  

mailto:sshackelford@tjpdc.org


2. the MANY THOUSANDS of rural area residents coming into the metro area in the course 
of the year for MEDICAL AND OTHER CLINICAL APPOINTMENTS,  tests, procedures, and 
research purposes and the MANY MORE THOUSANDS of their family members 

c. the proposed plan exhibits SCARCE ATTENTION to INNOVATION in transportation system 
design, effectiveness and efficiently including regarding 

1. MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION OPPORTUNITIES for each and every encounter in the 
metro area where some sort of transportation is needed 

2. REDUCTION OF BURDENS ON THE CLIMATE and on biological and ecological systems 
from transportation systems 

d. the proposed plan does not properly  recognize the uniquely necessary role of taxpayers and 
feepayers for the health of metro transportation systems and therefore the uniquely necessary 
duty to engage taxpayers and feepayers directly, explicitly and with ongoing sustained 
effort.  TAX PAYERS and FEE PAYERS need the most effective and the most efficient 
transportation systems available because they are perhaps the most crucial and necessary 
'public participation' in the metro transportation system.  Fleets of whatevers - buses, electric 
taxis, pedicabs, donkey carts, or  those flying bubbles on the Jetsons  - are POINTLESS without 
PARTICIPATION of riders who can afford to pay the fees required and taxpayers who can afford 
the taxes required to keep everything and everyone moving.  
 
Thank you, 
 
Edward Strickler 
  



Hey Sandy. 

 

You deserve much better than the small amount of information I'm about to provide here, about 

to head out on vacation, but I suppose something is better than nothing. 

 

1. Get Out in the Field. Your staff is very effective at speaking directly to the public but it doesn't 

seem to happen that often. I can cite work that Will and Nick did with the Cherry Ave Small 

Area Plan, and I also observed Nick and Shirese working an event in Darden Towe for the 

Rivanna River Study and they were quite good at getting residents to speak to issues that may 

never come up at Water Street Center. 

 

2. Give staff latitude to try new things. Not only will they pursue their work with much-enhanced 

enthusiasm if they are pursuing an idea but it also encourages the public to pay closer attention 

because it isn't the "same old thing" and it pulls people into the work. 

 

3. Ask for public input really early in the process. Too often public meetings are really just pro-

forma session in which an engineer presents an idea, with alot of thought and investment behind 

it and then it acquires intertia which the public can either accept or apply alot of negative energy 

to stop. This is what happened with the Route 20 project. In retrospect, it would have been better 

to say, "We have this problem of getting from A to B, how would *you* suggest we solve it?" 

 

The public participation plan doesn't really speak to this stuff--it's mostly about meeting 

procedural due process but it's important. 

 

I hope these suggestions will help. 

 

Peter 

 



Good afternoon, 
 
I’m a member of CTAC and would like to provide the following comments on the MPO’s draft updated 
Public Participation Plan (PPP). 
 
I first wanted to thank MPO staff for all of its efforts to engage the public, as well as your continuing 
work to find opportunities to expand and enhance these efforts, including those specifically related to 
CTAC. 
 
Below are a number of suggestions and recommendations on the draft PPP: 
 

• Introduction and Policy Statement (page 1): To me, these two sections read a bit technical and 
legal. Particularly given the increasing interests and concerns in our community about ensuring 
adequate community engagement, I encourage the MPO to make these up-front sections more 
accessible and aspirational. The recent update of the Richmond MPO’s PPP at the link below 
provides a good example (see the “What is Public Engagement” section): 
 
https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Public-Engagement-Plan-FINAL.pdf 
 

• Readability: Along similar lines, I encourage the MPO to incorporate a few images, diagrams, 
and/or charts for some key information to make the document more easily understandable, 
such as when outlining timelines and public input opportunities for key documents, or to simply 
depict how the MPO’s committees/bodies interrelate. 
 

• Dropping caveats: As another general point, the PPP includes several caveats which, while 
undoubtedly true, do not seem necessary for this document and seem to detract from the 
intent of encouraging public participation. A few examples: 
 

o Page 1: “To the extent possible by law and budget constraints, the policy and technical 
processes will be made inclusive of and accessible to the public as well as other regional 
stakeholders.” 

o Page 2: Regarding TJPDC’s list of interested parties: “TJPDC staff will include to the 
extent practicable, but not limited to: private citizens, public agencies…”  

o Page 7: “Continually experiment with a wide variety of marketing tools and visualization 
techniques (within limited budgets) to describe transportation plans…” 

 

• Public notices (pages 6 and 7):  
 

o In the listing of locations where notice of public meetings will be provided, it would be 
helpful to specify the TJPDC and/or MPO’s Facebook page (and any other relevant social 
media).  

o In the section on “Public Notice for Amending Major Documents,” I noticed that the 
LRTP is not listed among the others. Should it be? 
 

• Public participation (page 7) 
 

https://planrva.org/wp-content/uploads/Public-Engagement-Plan-FINAL.pdf


o In one of the first two bullets (or in a separate bullet) on public participation, I suggest 
adding mention of the MPO seeking community input at community events and 
festivals, which is something we have discussed at several recent CTAC meetings. 

o The bullet providing the MPO will “Conduct focus group meetings in traditionally 
underserved communities…,” should be expanded to not just mention “long range 
planning efforts,” but also other MPO studies and plans. 

 

• State planning processes: Key state planning processes, such as development of the Six Year 
Improvement Program also have significant effects on planning in our region. It would be helpful 
if this PPP discusses/provides for information and/or notice to the public of key state processes 
and input opportunities as well. 
 

• CTAC (Appendix A):  
 

o The second sentence of the CTAC overview provides that CTAC will help the MPO plan a 
transportation system that is “safe, efficient, and responsive…” In recent changes to our 
bylaws, I believe we added “equitable” and “accessible” to this statement, and I 
encourage you to do so here as well. 

o In the first bullet on the committee’s list of roles, I would suggest the following tweak to 
reflect CTAC’s recent discussions: “Host community forums and/or participate in 
community events to solicit public input from a diverse range of citizens and reflecting a 
broad range of interests.” 

 
Thank you for your consideration, and I hope you enjoy the holiday weekend. 
 
Travis Pietila 
 



1 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Public 
Participation  
Plan 

Information contained herin has been derived from Federal Regulation Code 450.316 

Approved September 23rd, 2020 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Adopted: 
▪ August 12, 2002 

 
Revised: 

▪ February 14, 2005 
▪ June 20, 2007 
▪ April 22, 2009 
▪ January 23, 2013 
▪ September 28, 2016 
▪ September 23, 2020 



3 
 

Glossary of Acronyms 
 

The following transportation-related acronyms are used in this document: 
 

ACCT Alliance for Community Choice in Transportation 
BRT Bus Rapid Transit 
CA-MPO Charlottesville Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
CAT Charlottesville Area Transit 
CTAC Citizen’s Transportation Advisory Committee 
DRPT Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
FY Fiscal Year (refers to the state fiscal year July 1 – June 30) 
Jaunt Regional transit service provider to Charlottesville City, and Albemarle, Fluvanna, Louisa, 

Nelson, Greene, and Buckingham Counties 
LRTP Long Range Transportation Plan.  Refers to the 25-year transportation plan. 
LRT Light Rail Transit 
MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
PL FHWA Planning Funding (used by MPO) 
RideShare Free Carpool matching service for Charlottesville City, and Albemarle, Fluvanna, Louisa, 

Nelson, and Greene Counties 
RTP Regional Transit Partnership 
SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient, Transportation Equity Act:  A Legacy for Users 

(legislation governing the metropolitan planning process) 
SOV Single Occupant Vehicle 
SPR FHWA State Planning and Research Funding (used by VDOT to support MPO) 
TDP Transit Development Plan (for CTS and JAUNT) 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program 
TJPDC Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 
TMPD VDOT Transportation and Mobility Planning Division 
UPWP Unified Planning and Work Program (also referred to as Work Program) 
UTS University Transit Service 
UVA University of Virginia 
VDOT Virginia Department of Transportation 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

I. Introduction  
 
The Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991 changed how 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO’s) conduct the transportation planning process, 
requiring enhanced public involvement.  TEA-21 reiterated and strengthened requirements for 
stakeholder and public involvement in 1998. In 2005, Safe Accountable, Flexible, Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) reinforced TEA-21 and 
particularly focused on ensuring environmental justice and the involvement of minority and low-
income citizens in the planning process.  In October 2012 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century (MAP-21) continued the trend developed by SAFETEA-LU. This document reflects the 
requirements of the present transportation act, contained in Federal Regulation Code 450.316. 
This document outlines the MPO’s base Public Participation Requirements. MPO Staff make 
every effort to go above and beyond these requirements. 
 

II. Policy Statement 
 
The Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization (CA-MPO) is the regional 
forum for comprehensive, continuing, and cooperative transportation planning in the urban study 
area and is committed to engaging all area citizens in its planning and programming activities.   
It is the policy of the CA-MPO to facilitate public information, access and involvement under the 
Three-C Agreement (for comprehensive, continuing, and cooperative planning) through which 
the interests of both public and private stakeholders are duly considered.  To the extent possible 
by law and budget constraints, the policy and technical processes will be made inclusive of and 
accessible to the public as well as to other regional stakeholders.   
 

III. Purpose 
 
The Public Participation Plan documents the process and activities through which the MPO 
carries out the following practices for effective participation, communication and consultation 
with all parties interested in the transportation planning process.  This process includes, but is 
not limited to: 

▪ Adherence to state and federal regulations regarding public notices and public hearings 
▪ Complete access to information barring legal or fiduciary restraints 
▪ Public input on key decisions 
▪ Development of innovative public involvement strategies 

  
This plan also describes standard procedures for the development, adoption and amendment of 
major planning documents including the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), the Unified Planning and Work Program (UPWP) 
and other major transportation studies.   Additionally, this PPP specifies the following: 

▪ MPO Plans and projects will include a public involvement component 
▪ Legal requirements for public involvement will be met or exceeded by the CA-MPO 
▪ All official meetings of the CA-MPO will include opportunities for public comment at the 

beginning and end of the meeting   
▪ A public comment period of 45 calendar days will be provided prior to the adoption of 

this public involvement process and/or any significant amendment to the process  
▪ The Public Participation Plan will be reviewed every three years and revised or amended 

as needed, in consultation with the public, and with the review by all three MPO 
committees 

 
 



5 
 

IV.  Ongoing Activities   
 

▪ The Thomas Jefferson Planning District publishes a regular report that informs the public 
about the PDC and MPO’s activities.  The mailing list for this report includes a broad 
cross-section of civic organizations, business leaders, press members, leaders in 
education, public transit officials, elected officials, and members of the community who 
request to receive the newsletter.  

▪ TJPDC publishes News Briefs on its website of the efforts and accomplishments for the 
TJPDC and the Charlottesville MPO.  

▪ The TJPDC and CA-MPO staff is available on a full-time basis to respond to direct 
questions and inquiries from citizens concerning transportation plans, programs, and the 
transportation planning process for the region.  Staff will make presentations at the 
request of local civic organizations and routinely provides information to the local print 
and electronic media.  Staff will be accessible to the public through a variety of means 
(i.e. e-mail, phone, and in-person).  

▪ The TJPDC maintains an extensive library of transportation, environmental, 
demographic, community planning, and GIS materials that are available for use by the 
public during the regular workday (8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.).   

▪ The TJPDC and the MPO maintain relationships with local academic institutions, making 
presentations to college and graduate level classes and often hosting an undergraduate 
or graduate intern on staff.  The CA-MPO regularly utilizes the assistance of the CTAC in 
its transportation planning activities.  CTAC is composed of City, County and MPO-
appointed community members with interest and expertise in planning-related topics.  

▪ In an effort to further engage with a diverse audience, the TJPDC maintains a Facebook 
page to periodically update page followers on topics of interest related to the TJPDC and 
the MPO.  This format allows for information to easily be disseminated to the public.   

▪ According to the provisions of SAFETEA-LU, the TJPDC and the CA-MPO maintain a 
list of “interested parties” and “stakeholder organizations.” TJPDC staff will include to the 
extent practicable, but not limited to: private citizens, public agencies, providers of freight 
services, private providers of transportation, representatives of public transportation, 
employee representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation 
facilities, and representatives of the disabled.  All citizens/groups requesting inclusion on 
the MPO mailing and e-mail list will be added. 

 

V.   Procedures 
 
1. MPO Policy Board and Committee Meetings 
 

▪ All MPO Policy Board and Committee meeting agendas will include meeting guidelines 
establishing time limits and procedures for public interaction with the Policy Board and 
Committees.  

 
▪ As far as technically possible, access to MPO Policy Board and Committee members via 

email will be facilitated.  
 

▪ All meetings of the Policy Board, Technical Committee and other MPO committees will 



6 
 

be open to the public and will be held in locations accessible to persons with handicaps 
and on public transit lines.  In circumstances where electronic meetings are authorized 
and held, the meeting information will be posted on the MPO website at the time that the 
agenda is posted with details on how the public can access the meeting.  Meeting 
information will also be distributed electronically.   
 

▪ Arrangements will be made for interpreters for hearing impaired individuals, and every 
effort will be made to ensure provision of interpreters for non-English speaking persons, 
provided a request is submitted at least two days before the meeting.  For meetings 
conducted electronically, interpretation services may be provided through closed 
captioning options. 
 

▪ Every effort will be made for public hearings, workshops, and forums to be scheduled at 
times that are accessible and convenient. 

 
2.   Public Notice for Proposed Adoption of Major Documents 
 

▪ The MPO Policy Board will hold no fewer than two (2) public hearings and one 30-day 
comment period prior to the adoption of the Long Range Transportation Plan.  

 
▪ The MPO Policy Board will hold at least one (1) public hearing and one 30-day comment 

period prior to the adoption of the Transportation Improvement Program. 
 

▪ The MPO Policy Board will hold at least one (1) public hearing and at least one 2 week 
comment period prior to the adoption of:  

o The Unified Planning and Work Program 
o Other planning documents developed by the MPO requiring approval 

 
▪ The MPO will advertise all public hearings at least two (2) weeks prior to the date of the 

hearing. 
 

▪ The MPO will provide notice for the proposed adoption of major documents by: 
o Publishing legal notice in the Daily Progress two weeks prior to the public 

hearings 
o Emailing legal notice to the MPO Stakeholder mailing list and the media two 

weeks prior to the public hearing 
o Posting legal notice at the TJPDC Offices and on the TJPDC website 
o Posting notices in central places of low-income and minority communities 
o Providing notices to agencies and organizations that support or are affiliated with 

low-income and minority populations 
o DRAFT documents will be available on the TJPDC website and at the TJPDC 

offices two weeks prior to advertised public hearings 
 

▪ Public information sessions and/or interactive workshops will be held regarding the 
LRTP, the TIP and other major studies affecting the region's transportation network as 
deemed necessary by the Policy Board, MPO staff, or requests from the public. 

 
▪ Summaries of all comments received and responses to these comments will be included 

in the TIP, LRTP, and other relevant documents (i.e. meeting minutes). 
  
 



7 
 

3. Public Notice for Amending Major Documents* 
 

▪ At least one public hearing will be held prior to amending: 
o The Transportation Improvement Program 
o The Unified Planning and Work Program 
o The Title VI Plan 
o Other MPO Documents where a hearing is deemed necessary 

 
▪ The MPO will provide notice for the amending of major documents by: 

o Publishing legal notice in the Daily Progress two weeks prior to the public 
hearings 

o Emailing legal notice to the MPO Stakeholder mailing list and the media two 
weeks prior to the public hearing 

o Posting legal notice at the TJPDC Offices and on the TJPDC website 
o Posting notices in central places of low-income and minority neighborhoods, 

such as Friendship Court.    
 
▪ Materials documenting the proposed amendments will be made available two weeks 

prior for public review: 
o At the TJPDC Offices 
o On the MPO website 

 
▪ Summaries of all comments received and responses to these comments will be included 

in the TIP, LRTP, and other relevant documents (e.g. meeting minutes). 
 
4.  Public Participation in the Development of the LRTP, UPWP, TIP, Plans, and Studies  
During the updating process, the MPO will employ the following strategies as appropriate: 

 
▪ Encourage and accept public input in a variety of ways (i.e. by mail, in person, website, 

phone, and via e-mail). 

▪ Include a broad segment of the population in development of programs, plans, and 
studies by conducting regional workshops to obtain public input on transportation and 
land use issues. 

▪ Conduct focus group meetings in traditionally underserved communities to ensure the 
interests of these groups are incorporated into long range planning efforts. 

▪ Meet with and identify needs of other groups with special interests in the community. 

▪ Continually experiment with a wide variety of marketing tools and visualization 
techniques (within limited budgets) to describe transportation plans (including LRTP and 
TIP) and to incorporate public participation into planning workshops. 

▪ In developing the LRTP and TIP, the MPO will consult with agencies and officials 
responsible for other planning activities within the MPO that are affected by 

 
* †Minor technical, spelling, grammatical, and similar routine corrections to the LRP, TIP, and/or other TJPDC/CA-MPO 
documents shall not be required to be advertised per “2.Public Notice for Review and Adoption of Major Documents.”  
Interpretation of the term minor shall be made by the appropriate state or federal agency at the time that the correction is to be 
made.  For TIP related “adjustments,” this is formalized in the “Unifying the System Improvement Process” (USIP) 
Memorandum of Agreement signed by VDOT, VDRPT and CA-MPO officials.  The USIP MOA was approved on March 19, 
2008.  The USIP MOA shall be referred to in the interpretation of the term “minor” for TIP related adjustments.   
 



8 
 

transportation or coordinate its planning process with such planning activities. 

▪ The MPO will consider other related planning activities within the metropolitan area 
when developing the LRTP, TIP, and other relevant plans or studies. 

▪ The MPO will provide an additional opportunity for public comment if the final LRTP, TIP 
or other transportation plan differs significantly from the version that was made available 
for comment by the MPO and raises new material issues which interested parties could 
not reasonably have foreseen from the public involvement efforts. 

 
5.  Documentation of Public Participation  

 
▪ The MPO staff will create a notebook (or database) to record public comments and 

records of public opinion acquired from a variety of sources. 
 

▪ The review process will help MPO staff evaluate its success at meeting Environmental 
Justice goals and Title VI regulations.  
 

▪ Comments and other input that come to the MPO will be forwarded to all members of the 
MPO Policy Board in a timely manner to allow adequate consideration but, no later than 
its next meeting. 

▪ Copies of the approved Participation Plan shall be provided to FHWA and FTA for 
informational purposes and shall be posted on the MPO website. 

 
6.  Communications with the Public and Community Organizations† 

 
▪ The MPO will coordinate with the statewide transportation planning public involvement 

and consultation process, as appropriate. 
 

▪ The MPO will identify and communicate with populations traditionally underserved by the 
transportation network, such as those with disabilities and low-income persons through 
organizations and media outlets known to serve these populations. 

 
▪ The MPO has identified locations of low income and minority communities using 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and has included this mapping data in the Title 
VI Plan.  The MPO will also seek input from these communities throughout the planning 
phase, and specifically for the TIP and the Long Range Transportation Plan updates.  
Methods for communicating to this audience may include:  

 
o Presenting at or sponsoring a community meeting in the targeted area and/or 
o Seeking representatives from the community to participate in an MPO meeting 

focusing their concerns and/or 
o Seeking representatives from the community and/or from service agencies 

familiar with the needs of these communities  
 

▪ Information regarding achievement of goals and deliverables identified in the UPWP will 
be provided for public review.  A final report on the work programmed in the UPWP will 
be prepared and available for public review annually. 

 

 
† The MPO Policy Board may act on an agenda item in the absence of proper notice with approval of a waiver of requirement by 75 
percent vote. 



9 
 

▪ Meeting materials will be made available electronically and/or distributed to those on the 
MPO contact list and to the media approximately one week prior to the meeting. 
 

▪ Notice will be sent to those on the MPO contact list approximately one week prior to 
each meeting to announce when meeting materials are electronically available. 

 
▪ Arrangements will be made to accommodate individuals that require special assistance 

to review meeting materials and other documents and reports. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

 
Appendix A- Committees of the MPO 

 
The following pages include descriptions of current MPO committees:   

▪ MPO Policy Board 
▪ MPO Technical Committee 
▪ CTAC (Citizen’s Transportation Advisory Committee) 

 
Once approved by a committee, committee meeting schedules and membership may be 
changed without amending the Public Participation Plan.  Any changes will be listed on the 
TJPDC website and included with other committee advertisement materials. 
 
Advisory committees can be established for major studies and issues affecting the region's 
transportation network. Examples of such committees past and present include the Community 
Mobility Committee (CMC), and the Transit Technical Committee. 
 
City and County citizens will be represented on the CTAC, the MPO Policy Board (via a CTAC 
representative), and the MPO Technical Committee (via a CTAC representative). 
 
The meeting schedule for all committee meetings will be posted on the TJPDC and CA-MPO 
websites, www.tjpdc.org & www.campo.tjpdc.org, per provisions in the Public Participation Plan. 
Furthermore, special meetings will be held as it becomes necessary and shall be posted in 
accordance with the established procedures as well. 
 
There are public comment periods at the beginning and end of all meetings held by all three 
MPO Committees. 
 
1. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Policy Board 
 
The MPO Policy Board is the decision-making body for the purpose of carrying out the 
continuing, cooperative and comprehensive (“3-C”) transportation planning and programming 
process as defined in United States Code Title 23, Section 134 and Title 49 Section 1607; and 
in accordance with the constitution and statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. In carrying 
out its responsibility the MPO Policy Board shall: 

▪ Establish policy for the continuing, comprehensive and cooperative transportation 
planning process; 

▪ Develop the long range transportation plan for the urban study area; 
▪ Review the Long Range Transportation Plan for the study area on an annual basis; 
▪ Update the Long Range Transportation Plan no less frequently than every five years; 
▪ Recommend action by other appropriate agencies; 
▪ Revise the Long Range Transportation Plan study area, defined by the "cordon 

boundary", as required, and in conjunction with VDOT; 
▪ Develop, in coordination with local governments and VDOT, socio-economic data for the 

regional traffic model;  
▪ Develop and approve the annual Transportation Improvement Program and alter 

planning documents as required by the U.S. Department of Transportation Regulations, 
as amended;  

▪ Perform or oversee other transportation reviews and evaluations; and, 
▪ Develop and approve the Work Program and Public Participation Plan 

 
Voting Members:  Two Albemarle County Board of Supervisors Representatives, two 
Charlottesville City Council Representatives, and one VDOT Representative 

http://www.tjpdc.org/
http://www.campo.tjpdc.org/


11 
 

 
Nonvoting Members:  UVA Office of the Architect, JAUNT, CAT, CTAC member, TJPDC 
representative, FHWA, FTA, DRPT.  
 
 
2.  Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Technical Committee 
 
The MPO Technical Committee is composed of individuals with technical knowledge in 
transportation and land use matters.  It will provide technical review, comment, and 
recommendations on transportation plans, programs, studies and other appropriate documents, 
and on regional transportation issues.   
 
The voting members of the committee shall consist of three (3) members appointed by the City 
of Charlottesville, three (3) members appointed by Albemarle County, one (1) designated 
representative from the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation, one (1) member 
each from the University of Virginia, Jaunt, Charlottesville Area Transit (CAT), the A-95 Review 
Agency, and any other appropriate agency as determined by the MPO.  Nonvoting members of 
the committee shall consist of one (1) representative each designated by the CTAC, the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), and the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority. 
 
The Committee shall integrate land use and environmental considerations into all of its activities 
in order to forge a stronger link between transportation, land use, and the environment.   The 
Committee will: 

▪ Determine the influence of current data upon the Transportation Plan in relation to 
previous data and projected trends; 

▪ Cooperate in the development of the procedures for the collection of traffic data and 
reassignment of traffic; 

▪ Work with the staffs of the TJPDC and VDOT to review, comment, recommend, and 
assist VDOT, participating political jurisdictions, or the TJPDC on any proposal, 
alternatives, and work performed on the location and design of facilities in the Long 
Range Transportation Plan; and serve in an advisory capacity to the MPO 

 
 
3. Citizen’s Transportation Advisory Committee (CTAC)   
 
The CTAC is composed of citizens appointed by the City, County and MPO to represent a broad 
range of interests in the community.  The purpose of CTAC is to advise and make 
recommendations to help the MPO plan a transportation system that is safe, efficient, and 
responsive to the needs of the broadest range of citizens in the region.  The committee will meet 
as frequently as needed during plan updates, but will meet at least six times annually during 
interim years. 
 
The committee shall consist of 13 interested citizens who reside within the Thomas Jefferson 
Planning District Commission’s boundaries.  Five (5) representatives will be appointed by the 
Charlottesville City Council, five (5) representatives appointed by the Albemarle County Board 
of Supervisors, and three (3) representatives will be appointed by the MPO Policy Board.  Every 
effort will be made to ensure that the committee represents a broad range of interests and 
embodies the diverse character of the community. 
 
Roles of the committee will be to: 

▪ Host community forums to solicit public input; 



12 
 

▪ Present plan updates and recommendations for plan amendments to MPO Technical 
Committee for endorsement and approval by MPO Policy Board; 

▪ Create Policy Guidelines for the operation of the Committee, to be approved by the MPO 
Policy Board, to assure consistent and equitable operations while providing 
accountability of the processes; 

▪ Continue to assist, review, plan, and recommend to MPO Technical Committee on-going 
changes and needs to the current Long Range Transportation Plan;  

▪ Serve in a project specific advisory capacity; and, 
▪ Via its own initiative and public input shall identify multi-modal transportation problem 

areas and recommend solutions to the MPO Technical Committee for consideration and 
inclusion in the current Long Range Transportation Plan   

 
 
 
 



13 
 

 

Appendix B- Section 5307 Grant Program  
 
While a Federal Transit Administration grant applicant may choose to maintain a separate 
approach for complying with the public participation requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5307 
concerning the applicant's proposed Section 5307 grant program, the grant applicant is 
encouraged to integrate compliance with these requirements with the local MPO’s adopted 
public involvement process associated with the Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP). 
Charlottesville Area Transit and Jaunt choose to integrate coordination with the Charlottesville-
Albemarle MPO and give formal public notice in this Public Participation Plan that the MPO’s 
TIP development process is being used to satisfy Charlottesville Area Transit’s and Jaunt’s 
public participation and public hearing requirements of Section 5307(c). The public notice of 
public involvement activities and time established for public review and comment on the TIP will 
satisfy the program-of-projects requirements of the Urbanized Area Formula Program. A project 
that requires an environmental assessment or an environmental impact statement will involve 
additional public involvement, as presented in joint FHWA/FTA environmental regulations, 
"Environmental Impact and Related Procedures," 23 C.F.R. Part 771. 



  

Page 1 of 4 
 

Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water Street, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● (434) 979-1597 fax ● info@tjpdc.org email 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
MPO Policy Board 

Minutes: July 22, 2020 
DRAFT 

 
Committee – Voting Members   Staff 
Ann Mallek, Albemarle County 
John Lynch, VDOT – Culpeper District  
Michael Payne, City of Charlottesville 
Lloyd Snook, City of Charlottesville (absent) 
Ned Gallaway, Albemarle County 
 
 
Non-Voting& Alternates 
Brad Sheffield, JAUNT (absent) Dan Butch, Albemarle County (absent) 
Karen Davis, JAUNT (absent) Wood Hudson, DRPT  
Chuck Proctor, VDOT-Culpeper District Tony Cho, FTA (absent) 
Stacy Londrey, VDOT – Culpeper District  Travis Pietila, CTAC (absent) 
Hal Jones, VDOT – Culpeper District (absent) Richard Duran, FHWA 
Julia Monteith, UVA Office of the Architect   
Garland Williams, CAT (absent) 
Juwhan Lee, CAT (absent) 
 
Call to Order: 
Mr. Payne called the virtual meeting to order at 4:01 p.m.  
 
Mr. Payne read a legal preamble to the meeting allowing the MPO Policy Board to meet 
electronically. 
 
Matters from the Public: 
 
Peter Krebs, with the Piedmont Environmental Council (PEC), said regarding agenda item #8, 
that Albemarle County had a Smart Scale meeting and there was a controversial project that 
needed more time for consideration and public input, so it has been tabled. The City had a 
controversial project but decided to have community engagement after they had made their 
decision to apply and then would have a project kick-off. While he understands the logic behind 
each of these decisions, he feels it is very important to hear more from the public no matter 
which process is used.  
 
Response to Matters from the Public: 
None. 
 
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) Amendment: 
Ms. Shannon explained that there is an amendment to the TIP because VDOT reallocated money 
for road maintenance. This amendment needs approval from the Board. 

Sandy Shackelford, TJPDC 
Gretchen Thomas, TJPDC 
Jessica Hersh-Ballering, TJPDC 
Chip Boyles, TJPDC 
Lucinda Shannon, TJPDC 
Sara Pennington, Rideshare/TJPDC 
 

mailto:tony.cho@dot.gov
mailto:tpietila@selcva.org
mailto:mack.frost@dot.gov
mailto:cboyles@tjpdc.org


  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Public Hearing 
Mr. Payne opened the public hearing. 
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
Mr. Payne closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Payne made a motion to approve the TIP amendment. Ms. Mallek seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
General Administration: 
Review and Acceptance of the Agenda 
Mr. Payne made a motion to accept the agenda. Ms. Mallek seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Reschedule November, 2020 Meeting 
Ms. Mallek suggested that since the November 2020 meeting is so close to the Thanksgiving 
holiday that it be moved to early December to combine both the November and December 
meetings. 
 
Ms. Shannon said she would send a poll to the Board for a consensus on the best date for 
everyone. 
 
Approval of May 27, 2020 Minutes 
Ms. Mallek stated that she had sent a correction to Ms. Shannon prior to the meeting, which Ms. 
Shannon has made.  
 
Ms. Mallek made a motion to approve the May 27, 2020 meeting minutes as corrected and Mr. 
Payne seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Formal Resolution of Support for Local Government Smart Scale Projects: 
Ms. Shannon noted that the projects in the agenda packet are the ones supported by the localities 
and the PDC. She proceeded to review the projects listed in the packet. 
 
Kevin McDermott, Transportation Planner for Albemarle County, stated that there are five 
potential projects for the county and their staff was looking to pare down that list. Before they 
can do that, they need the MPO to make a resolution on all the potential projects and then the 
county will pick which projects to submit. 
 
Mr. Payne made a motion to approve all listed projects and to create a formal resolution of 
support. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Formal Resolution of Support for MPO Smart Scale Application: 
Ms. Shannon stated that there have been some sizable changes to the 29/Fontaine Ave 
interchange project, so she is looking for a resolution of support for the Hillsdale Drive South 
extension and the Hydraulic Road and US 29 projects. Ms. Shannon continued saying in 
September, there will be a request for a resolution to support the 29/Fontaine Ave interchange 



  

Page 3 of 4 
 

project because they did not want to ask the Board for support based solely on what was 
presented at this meeting. 
 
Mr. Boyles said the changes were made up to just a few hours prior to this meeting. He said he 
would like to have community engagement, perhaps virtually, sometime in August and then 
come back to the Board for a final resolution for that one project.  
 
Ms. Mallek asked why there were changes to the project. 
 
Mr. Lynch explained there was an effort to reduce the cost while salvaging the benefits of the 
project to give it more of a chance for funding. The movements through the intersection will be 
different. He noted that it would be worth waiting to see if it is feasible with the public’s input 
and support.  
 
Ms. Mallek said the project needs to be reviewed prior to the August 5 Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting.  
 
Ms. Shannon said she would schedule a public meeting to discuss the changes to the project prior 
to the August 5 meeting. 
 
Mr. Payne made a motion to pass the resolution for the Hillsdale Drive South extension and the 
Hydraulic Road and US 29 projects. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Formal Resolution of Support for new FOIA Officer: 
Ms. Shannon noted that David Blount, the Legislative Liaison for TJPDC, is already the FOIA 
Officer for that organization, so it makes sense that he would be the MPO’s FOIA Officer as 
well.  
 
Ms. Mallek made a motion to appoint David Blount as the MPO’s new FOIA Officer. Mr. 
Gallaway seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion 
Process and use of committees in development of Smart Scale Projects 
Mr. Boyles noted that the Route 20 Bike Path and the Preston/Grady intersection projects could 
have utilized increased community engagement. He said that for the MPO projects, he is looking 
to put together a policy for any controversial or larger-scale projects that demand more time and 
community involvement prior to the pre-application period. That way, when the Policy Board 
gets to this point in the application process, everyone will have knowledge of the details of the 
concept and will have had the chance to provide input.  
 
Mr. Boyles said the down side to this is that projects have to be identified much earlier than they 
have been in the past, which would mean more work for the local government staff and the local 
government bodies to recommend projects to the MPO. The other downside is that once the pre-
application date gets closer, VDOT usually helps with conceptual design. In this case, VDOT 
may not be able to help with that design work. The MPO does not do design work, so money 
would be needed to help pay for the concept designs.  
 
Ms. Mallek said she saw the problem with the Bike Path project was less about a lack of 
knowledge about the project and more that the choices being made were made by people “out of 



  

Page 4 of 4 
 

the loop,” including private advocacy groups. This included key decisions about spending 
money. She wants to prevent those kinds of things from happening again in the future. She said 
the meetings need to be more official and need to be announced to the public, and they should 
have agendas and minutes. 
 
Ms. Mallek said it is important that the localities work with MPO staff during the whole process. 
 
Review Draft Public Participation Plan (PPP) 
Ms. Shackelford directed the Board to the memo and the draft Public Participation Plan in the 
agenda packet. This is a federally mandated document to be certain that the public has input on 
planning documents and processes. She noted that even with the federal requirements, the MPO 
wants to go above and beyond to include the public in transportation planning. 
 
Ms. Mallek noted that it is critical to follow the PPP in order for it to actually work. She asked 
Staff to consider ways to include a way to record meetings. She asked that staff highlight the 
changes that were made to the original PPP before it is sent to the Board so they know what parts 
to review.  
 
Staff Updates 
Ms. Shannon noted that the Draft State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is now 
open for public comment. It relates to the MPO’s Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
and can be located on VDOT’s STIP website. A link to the draft STIP is provided in the July 
Policy Board meeting packet.  
 
Ms. Shannon explained that there is an informational flyer in the packet on the MPO area’s 
ongoing design and construction projects. It describes where to find information on 
transportation projects and gives links to all the projects. 
 
Mr. Boyles described the INVEST in American Bill as an infrastructure funding bill and MPOs 
around the country are sending support letters for Congress to consider. He went on to say that 
the Long Bridge Congressional Act of 2020 to fund an additional leg of the Long Bridge, a rail 
bridge that crosses the Potomac from Virginia into DC.  
 
Mr. Payne made a motion to send both letters of support. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion and 
the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Ms. Shannon said she will prepare the letters and send to the Board leadership for signatures. 
 
Items Added to the Agenda 
None. 
 
Additional Matters from the Public 
None. 
 
Mr. Payne adjourned the meeting at 5:17 p.m. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION ENDORSING THE SUBMISSION OF SMART SCALE (HB2) 
APPLICATIONS REQUESTING TRANSPORTATION FUNDING BY THE 

CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE METROPOLITAN PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION 

  
WHEREAS, the Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), 

in cooperation with the Virginia Department of Transportation and the Thomas Jefferson Planning 
District Commission, completed a comprehensive Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) in 
May, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2045 LRTP includes the following transportation improvements; and 
  
WHEREAS, the MPO Policy Board has identified transportation projects which are 

critical to improve safe and efficient movement of people and goods along public roadways in the 
Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan area; and 

  
WHEREAS, during its 2014 session, the Virginia General Assembly enacted legislation 

in the form of House Bill 2 (“HB2”) now titled “Smart Scale”, which established new criteria for 
the allocation of transportation funding for projects within the state; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) during its board meeting of 

June 17, 2015 approved the Policy and Guidelines for Implementation of a Project Prioritization 
Process in accordance with Smart Scale; and  

  
WHEREAS, many of the transportation projects identified by the MPO meet the eligibility 

criteria for funding under Smart Scale; and 
  
WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Metropolitan Transportation Planning Area of 

Charlottesville-Albemarle, for the MPO, the City of Charlottesville and Albemarle County to 
submit HB2 applications requesting state funding for eligible transportation projects. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Policy Board of the MPO fully 

endorses the submission of a Smart Scale application requesting funding for the following 
transportation project: 

 
 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

Being Submitted by the CA-MPO within the MPO Area: 

 

1. US 29 and Fontaine Ave Interchange Improvement 

 

 

ADOPTED this 23nd day of September, 2020 by the MPO Policy Board being duly assembled. 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

Michael Payne, Chair 
Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Policy Board  
 



Imagery © 2020 Google

CONCEPTUAL SKETCH

APPROVED AT THE TIME THIS DRAWING WAS CREATED.

SURVEY.  NO PROJECT HAS BEEN INITIALIZED,  FUNDED,  OR 

PROPERTY LINES ARE APPROXIMATE AND NOT BASED ON 

LIMITS OF IMPACTS ARE SPECULATIVE.  EXISTING R/W AND 

DRAWING IS PURELY CONCEPTUAL AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

M
a
tc

h
li
n
e
 -
 S

h
e
e
t 
2

Fontaine Avenue

N

Ext
end

edFon
tain

e A
ven

ue

29

29

702

820

29

B
uckingham

 C
ircle

SECTION - SHEET 2

SEE TYPICAL 

D
E

T
A
IL
 
- 
S

H
E

E
T
 
2

S
E

E
 
I-
6
4
 
IN

T
E

R
C

H
A

N
G
E
 

 Facility Location

Potential SWM

July 2020

Improvement Concept
(Fontaine Ave) Interchange
Route 29 and 29 Business

of Transportation

Virginia Department

Culpeper District Design Unit

Sheet 1/2

0

SCALE

50' 100' 150' 200'

Location: Albemarle County

Proposed Barrier & Guardrail

Pavement/Lane Markings

Approx. Temp. Easement (grading limits T.B.D.)

Existing ROW (from GIS)

Proposed ROW

Concrete Median & Curbing

Shared Use Path

Legend

T
O
 
I-
6
4
,  
L
Y
N

C
H

B
U

R
G

T
O
 

U
S
-2

5
0
,  

W
A
S

H
IN

G
T

O
N

TO CHARLOTTESVILLE

TO R
AGGED MTN R

ESERVOIR



M
a
tc

h
li
n
e
 -
 S

h
e
e
t 
1

Imagery © 2020 Google

Fontaine Avenue

29

R
a
y
 H

u
n
t 

D
ri
v
e

F
ro

m
 U

S
-2

9
 n

o
rt
h
b
o
u
n
d
, 
I-
6
4

T
o
 U

S
-2

9
 n

o
rt
h
b
o
u
n
d

29

TYPICAL SECTION - UNDER BRIDGE

29

CONCEPTUAL SKETCH

APPROVED AT THE TIME THIS DRAWING WAS CREATED.

SURVEY.  NO PROJECT HAS BEEN INITIALIZED,  FUNDED,  OR 

PROPERTY LINES ARE APPROXIMATE AND NOT BASED ON 

LIMITS OF IMPACTS ARE SPECULATIVE.  EXISTING R/W AND 

DRAWING IS PURELY CONCEPTUAL AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  

WEST

E
AS

T

N

LANE

12'

LANE

12'

SHY

2' 6'

MIN.

4.5'

E
X
.  
   
 P
IE

R

E
X
.  
   
 P
IE

R

MEDIAN

RAISED

2-4'

SHY

2' 

MIN.

4.5'

SHY

2' 

SHY

2' 

13' PATH*

EACH SIDE (1.0' MINIMUM)

WITH 1.5' TYPICAL CLEARANCE ON 

*SHARED USE PATH IS 10' WIDE 

LANE

12'

Ramp

Turn Lane and 

Close Existing 

July 2020

Improvement Concept
(Fontaine Ave) Interchange
Route 29 and 29 Business

of Transportation

Virginia Department

Culpeper District Design Unit

Sheet 2/2

0

SCALE

50' 100' 150' 200'

Location: Albemarle County

Proposed Barrier & Guardrail

Pavement/Lane Markings

Approx. Temp. Easement (grading limits T.B.D.)

Existing ROW (from GIS)

Proposed ROW

Concrete Median & Curbing

Shared Use Path

Legend

TO CHARLOTTESVILLE

T
O 

CH
AR

LO
T
T
E
S
VI

LL
E



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 
 

If there are any questions, please contact Lucinda Shannon at lshannon@tjpdc.org or (434) 979-7310 Ext.113. 

Memorandum 
 

 
 

To: MPO-Policy Board 
From: Lucinda Shannon, Transportation Planning Manager 
Date: September 23, 2020 
Reference: Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment Project 
 
 
 
Purpose: To inform the Policy Board about the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment project and gather 

information.  
 

Summary of the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment Project:  
As Electric Vehicles take up greater shares of the automotive market, the importance of developing infrastructure to 
support the use of these vehicles becomes a larger concern. The parking garages in downtown Charlottesville are being 
outfitted with EV charging stations, and the demand for these facilities will continue to grow as more consumers opt for 
electric vehicles. MPO staff will assess the predicted need for EV charging stations in the area, and begin identifying 
locations that could likely support this need. 
 

End Products: 
▪ Projection of EV use and charging station needs throughout the MPO area; 
▪ Develop a network of key stakeholders to assess and build strategies for meeting charging station needs; 
▪ Build partnerships with government, community, and business leaders to plan for infrastructure in key locations; and 
▪ Investigate funding sources available for providing EV charging infrastructure at various types of facilities. 
 
 

Action Item:  MPO staff would like guidance on developing a network of key stakeholders to assess and build strategies for 
supporting the use of electric vehicles in the TJPDC region.   
 

Possible stakeholders could include representatives from: 
• Albemarle County  
• City of Charlottesville 
• VDOT  
• EV manufacture  
• Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles 
• Citizen/EV user  
• Major employers (University of Virginia) 
• Ride Share (commuter lots) 
• Virginia Clean Cities 
• MPO Tech and CTAC Committees  
• TJPDC Rural Tech Committee 

mailto:lshannon@tjpdc.org


Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission  1 
FY 2021 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station Needs Assessment 
Project Scope 

Background 
As electric vehicles (EVs) take up greater shares of the automotive market, the importance of 
developing infrastructure to support the use of these vehicles becomes a larger concern. The 
parking garages in downtown Charlottesville are being outfitted with EV charging stations, and 
the demand for these facilities will continue to grow as more consumers opt for electric 
vehicles. 
 
MPO staff will assess the predicted need for EV charging stations in the area and begin 
identifying sources that could likely support this need. 

Goal 
Increase transportation options, reduce fossil fuel emissions, and improve transportation 
infrastructure in the Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (PDC) area by improving 
the supports for the use of electric vehicles for residents.   

Milestones 
1. Projection of EV use and charging station needs throughout the PDC area 
2. Develop a network of key stakeholders to assess and build strategies for meeting 

charging station needs 
3. Build partnerships with government, community, and business leaders to plan for 

infrastructure in key locations 
4. Investigate funding sources available for providing EV charging infrastructure at various 

types of facilities 

Steps Towards the Milestones  
1. Identify and consult with stakeholders  
Timeline: First Quarter and ongoing 
Deliverable: Kickoff meeting (Q1), regular contact with stakeholders 
Resources: 2 hours a month (total 25 hours) 
Stakeholders for this project will include government, community, and business leaders who 
are affected by the use of EVs in the PDC area and will provide guidance and direction to meet 
the project objectives. TJPDC staff will work with the stakeholders to assess the community EV 
support needs and develop strategies, in partnership, to meet those needs. Some of the 
questions for the stakeholders include: 

• What are the EV needs in the PDC area?  
• Are we asking the right questions? 
• How can we promote and support the use of EVs in the PDC area?  

 
Possible members would include representatives from:  



Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission  2 
FY 2021 

1. Albemarle County  
2. City of Charlottesville 
3. VDOT  
4. EV manufacture  
5. Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles 
6. Citizen/EV user  
7. Major employers (University of Virginia) 
8. Ride Share (commuter lots) 
9. Virginia Clean Cities 
10. MPO Tech and CTAC Committees  
11. TJPDC Rural Tech Committee  

 
2. Needs Statement and Data Collection 
Timeline: Second and Third Quarter 
Deliverable: Projection of EV use and charging station needs throughout the PDC area 
Resources: 150 hours 
 
The needs statement will describe the purpose of the project and why it is important to support 
EV use in PDC region. This step will also work to identify any missing supports for EV use in the 
PDC area. Some of the factors researched and sources used could include: 

1. Market share and historical trends, factors that influence EV purchase and use, why it is 
important to support, infrastructure opportunities 

2. How many electric vehicles there are in our PDC region? Registration, licensing fees  
3. Destination/Commute patterns, travel patterns 
4. Industry needs, manufactures, dealerships, what information they are giving  
5. MetroQuest Survey 
6. Inventory of charging stations 
 

3. Recommendations 
Timeline: fourth Quarter 
Deliverable: Final Report disseminated to Technical Committee and the public 
Resources: 25 hours 
 
In addition to building partnerships with key stakeholders and bringing awareness about EVs to 
the community, the project will produce a final report that will include the needs identified in 
step two above and possible strategies to support EV use in the PDC area. These strategies 
could include:  

1. Recommended actions to support EV use, including zoning ordinances, promotional 
activities, and strategic locations for charging stations to support EV use 

2. Funding sources available for providing EV charging infrastructure at various types of 
facilities 



 

 

MEMO 

To: CA-MPO Policy Board 
From: Chip Boyles, Executive Director 
Date: July 22, 2020 REVISED  September 8, 2020 
Re: 2022 Smart Scale MPO Project Selection Process 

Purpose: To identify and fully vet with equitable and engaged community participation, transportation 
projects to be submitted for 2022 Smart Scale consideration.  

Background: The MPO has since the beginning of Smart Scale received recommendations for Smart Scale 
application in two methods: 

1. The MPO Technical Committee recommends projects to be reviewed and recommended to the 
MPO Citizen’s Advisory Committee for review and to the MPO Policy Board and local 
government for final consideration; and 

2. Receive recommendations directly from the City of Charlottesville and Albemarle County   for 
the MPO to apply on their behalf. 

During the 2020 application process, one project, the Route 20 Bike/Ped Path, experienced the need for 
additional community engagement and design review beyond the review provided for past project 
applications. A number of citizens and interested stakeholder groups had not been fully engaged in the 
preliminary conceptual designs and project options. The result was a conceptual project that was not 
adequately vetted by the public. Following the Smart Scale and MPO Policy Board protocol, the project 
did not receive approval to be submitted for funding consideration through Smart Scale. Because of the 
timing of this, the MPO will be asked to submit only three projects for their four available submissions. 

Issues: The MPO Policy Board needs to determine a way to identify priority projects much earlier to be 
considered for future Smart Scale submissions. To be included in this selection process, determining 
which possible projects require any additional community engagement or design or local match and 
which may require only minor community engagement. The MPO would not have resources available to 
fully engage four or more projects for each Smart Scale round.  

Action Needed: MPO staff recommends that Smart Scale selection procedures be drafted that will help to 
prioritize transportation projects for Smart Scale consideration; determine which priority projects require 
additional community engagement and/or deign and/or local match; determine how to address direct 
project requests by the City of Charlottesville and Albemarle County. These procedures should be in place 
by February, 2021 when current Smart Scale scores are expected.   

 

 

 



 

Sample procedures: 

Once Smart Scale scoring is provided from the most recent submission round, usually in February, present 
current scores to the MPO Policy Board, CTAC and Technical Committee.   

CTAC and the MPO Tech Committee will recommend projects to be considered for the next Smart Scale 
round. 

Recommendations will be shared with the City of Charlottesville and Albemarle County. Charlottesville 
and Albemarle may support these recommendations or offer their own projects for consideration. 
Projects to be considered must be submitted by May 2021. 

CTAC and Tech Committee will review and consider the requested projects and will provide a list of up to 
five recommended projects for to the MPO Policy Board. 

In that recommendation, projects will be prioritized as major or minor projects. No more than two 
projects may be considered major. 

Major projects will require an appointed advisory panel to advise on project development and 
community engagement to include specific online information (web site), similar but smaller than the 
Hydraulic and 29 Advisory Panel. It is likely outside consulting will be required to develop technical 
options. The advisory panel will be appointed by the MPO Policy Board and staffed by the TJPDC staff. 
Panel meetings should begin in October, 2021. This panel will meet regularly to review the objectives of 
the project and possible options, to include opportunities and threats of the transportation and land use 
changes of the potential project. Updates will be provided to the Technical Committee, CTAC and MPO 
Policy Board.  

Minor projects will not require an advisory panel and will rely solely on VDOT, MPO Technical Committee 
and VDOT consultants for technical expertise. TJPDC staff will coordinate public engagement through 
grouped engagement meetings and CTAC meetings.  

SAMPLE SCHEDULE 

March ’21 Project Scores from VDOT 

May ’21 Projects must be submitted to CTAC and Tech Committee for consideration as MPO Smart 
Scale applications 

June ’21 Award of project funding by CTB 

July ’21 Projects are recommended by CTAC and Tech Committee to MPO Policy Board.  

Sept ’21 MPO Policy Board approves projects to be considered, differentiates between Major & 
Minor  

Nov ‘21  MPO Policy Board appoints Advisory Panels.  (May occur in September if needed) 



 

Jan– June’22 Panels Meet (may begin in October if needed) 

April ‘ 22 Letters of Intent due to VDOT 

May ’22 MPO considers resolutions for projects to submit for funding 

Aug ’22 Smart Scale Applications due 

 

Concerns: 

1. Will require the MPO and local governments to identify priority projects much earlier than 
previously 

2. Limits the ability of the MPO to apply on behalf of the local government 
3. Does not have resources for engineering and design consulting. The MPO only has resources for 

limited planning and facilitation. 

Benefits: 

1. Improved community engagement beyond what is required to submit Smart Scale applications 
2. Early consideration of match funding to improve project scores 
3. Identification of design/engineering funding to assist in application development 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Y  

 

FY  2 020 

  

 
 

Annual Performance Expenditure Report 
 

  

Fiscal Year 2020 

Submitted August 2020  

 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle CA-MPO 



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 2 

 
Introduction 
 
The CA-MPO approved its FY 2020 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) in March 2019. The 
CA-MPO Work Program Progress Report provides a short summary of each activity for the year. 
Please reference the 2020 UPWP for details concerning the approved budget, and work 
description for each task. The following graphic identifies all the activities in the 2020 UPWP. 

 
 
Task 1: Administration        Budgeted $60,000 
Task 1A – Reporting and Compliance with Regulations   
Task 1B – Staffing Committees  
Task 1C – Information Sharing  
Task 1D – Cross-Jurisdictional Communication 
Task 1E – Public Participation  
Task 1F – Online Resources  
 
Task 2: Long Range Transportation Planning     Budgeted $68,000 
Task 2A – Regional Transportation Revenue Study  
Task 2B – Bicycle and Pedestrian Corridor Evaluation 
Task 2C – Regional Transit Planning  
Task 2D – Assist with VTRANS Update 
 
Task 3: Short Range Planning       Budgeted $76,910 
Task 3A – Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Task 3B– Short Range Project Planning 
Task 3C – Travel Demand Management (TDM)  
Task 3D – Regional Transit Partnership (RTP) 
Task 3E – On-Call Services 
 
Task 4: Contracted Projects and Studies       Budgeted $0 
Task 3A – Explore opportunities for contracted project and studies. 
  



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 3 

Background 
 
The Charlottesville Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization (CA-CA-MPO) provides a 
forum for conducting continuing, comprehensive, and coordinated (3-C) transportation 
decision-making among the City, County, UVA, JAUNT, CAT, DRPT and VDOT officials. The CA-
MPO conducts transportation studies and ongoing planning activities, including the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), which lists road and transit improvements 
approved for federal funding, and the Long Range Transportation Plan for the overall 
transportation network.  
 
The CA-CA-MPO area includes the City of Charlottesville and the portion of Albemarle County 
that is either urban or anticipated to be urban within the next 20 years. In 2013, the CA-CA-
MPO boundaries were updated and expanded to be more consistent with 2010 census data. 
The Commonwealth’s Secretary of Transportation approved these new boundaries in March 
2013. A map of the CA-CA-MPO area appears below.  
 
 

 
 
 

 

  

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO Area 



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 4 

Task 1: Administration 
 

 
 
Task 1A – Reporting and Compliance with Regulations   

• Processed monthly invoicing the year 
• Developed and approved the draft FY 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
• Developed and approved the Transportation Improvement Program for 2021 to 2024 
• Developed and approved the Safety Performance Measure Targets 
• Updated the Regional Transit Partnership MOU 
• Distributed the FFY19 Obligation Report 
• Completed MPO Self-Certification 

 
Task 1B – Staffing Committees  
MPO staff hosted regular meetings for the following groups: 

• TJPDC Commission  
• MPO Policy Board 
• MPO Technical Committee   
• Citizens Transportation Advisory Committee 
• Regional Transit Partnership  
• Bike and Pedestrian Coordination Committee 
• Census Complete Count Committee 
• Co-facilitated (along with Piedmont Environmental Council) Regional Greenways 

Advisory Group 
• Charlottesville Area Alliance 
• Staffed a joint meeting with the Staunton/Augusta/Waynesboro MPO 

 
Task 1C – Information Sharing  

• Provided regular updates to the MPO website: http://campo.tjpdc.org/ with meeting 
materials, and information related to transportation planning activities   

• Staff participated in VDOT’s MPO Quarterly meetings to receive updates and share 
information 

• Participated in ongoing Census Complete Count Committee efforts 
• Distributed monthly news brief to regional mailing list 
• MPO Staff continues to maintain a Facebook page 
• Met with city representatives regarding scooter program 

 

Task 1  BUDGET  Billed  % Funds 
Expended  

UPWP 
Page  

Administration  $60,000 $60,000 100% 10 

http://campo.tjpdc.org/


Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 5 

Task 1D – Cross-Jurisdictional Communication 
• Continue to work with Charlottesville and Albemarle on bike/ped planning and sharing 

data through One Map   
• Continue to work with rural counties on transportation planning 
• Continue to share communications about Smart Scale applications 
• Met with travel demand management staff from University of Virginia Parking & 

Transportation to discuss potential collaboration 
• Collaborated on the active mobility coalition 
• Received letters of support from City of Charlottesville and Albemarle County for a DRPT 

grant funding application for a regional transit vision plan 
• Collaborated with Smart C’ville and localities to plan a “Single Occupancy Vehicle 

Transportation” forum 
 
Task 1E – Public Participation  

• Hosted public meetings on TIP Amendments, the 2021-2014 TIP and the FY2021 UPWP 
• Regularly update the website 
• Staff collaborated with the following partners or initiatives: 

o City of Charlottesville Bicycle and Pedestrian Program 
o Clean Commute Challenge  
o Community Climate Collaborative  
o Transportation-themed Lunch & Learn event as part of C3’s Better Business 

Challenge 
o Single Occupancy Vehicle Travel forum 
o Three Notched Trail shared use path 

• Hosted a webinar facilitated by the Smart Growth Network featuring Jeff Speck 
(pedestrian planning expert) and Jarrett Walker (transit planning expert) on 1/17; we 
had 12 attendees at the WSC 

• Participated as “listening stakeholders” in Smart C’ville’s “Single Occupancy Vehicle 
Transportation Forum” 

 
Task 1F – Online Resources  

• Continue to maintain and update the MPO website and Facebook page, to provide 
notices and updates on MPO activities  

• Developed online interactive GIS maps for the Long-Range Transportation Plan and the 
Bike and Pedestrian Plan 

 
  



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 6 

 
Task 2: Long Range Transportation Planning  
 

Task 2  BUDGET  Billed   % Funds 
Expended  

UPWP 
Page  

Long Range Transportation 
Planning  

$68,000 $68,000 100% 13 

 
 
Task 2A – Regional Transportation Revenue Study  

• Project is currently on hold due to the changing financial outlook  
• Following State Finance Committee proposals on the future of transportation revenues 
• Reviewed Virginia Transportation Research Council’s 2019 funding options report and 

related TJPDC files 
 
Task 2B – Bicycle and Pedestrian Corridor Evaluation 

• Attended several public and small group meetings to investigate the creation of a 
shared use path along the historic Three Notched Trail route 

• Working with Albemarle County and VDOT to determine if VDOT consultants can 
conduct a feasibility study on a section of the path from Charlottesville to Crozet 

• Phone call with Department of Conservation and Recreation staff regarding a future 
extension of the James River Heritage Trail into Albemarle County 

• Met with Piedmont Environmental Council staff to discuss bike and pedestrian planning 
• Attended Virginia Statewide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee quarterly 

meeting 
 
Task 2C – Regional Transit Planning  

• Continue to host Regional Transit Partnership meetings and activities 
• Completed work for DRPT grant funding applications for a regional transit vision plan 

and expanded transit service to Albemarle County 
• Staff is working with Greene County and JAUNT to facilitate transit service 

improvements  
• Coordinating effort with the City of Charlottesville and DRPT to develop a feasibility 

study to improve, expand and increase public control of the current Amtrak Union 
Station in Charlottesville 

• Utilize apply for Federal Build Grant funding for a preliminary design and development 
plan for the Amtrak site for a multi-modal transportation center 

 
Task 2D – Assist with VTRANS Update 

• Attended meetings and participated in study  
  



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 7 

Task 3: Short Range Planning  
 

Task 3 BUDGET  Billed   % Funds 
Expended  

UPWP 
Page  

Short Range Planning $76,910 $76,910 100% 14 

 
 
Task 3A – Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

• Worked with VDOT to adjust and amend the FY18 to FY21 TIP 
• Worked with VDOT, local transit agencies and DRPT to develop and approve FY 2021 to 

2024 TIP 
 
Task 3B– Short Range Project Planning 

• TJPDC, Albemarle County, and Charlottesville City staff members met to discuss 
potential projects for consideration for the next round of Smart Scale funding 

• Hosted meetings to discuss new solutions for the Route 29/Hydraulic Solutions projects 
with stakeholders and Policy Board members 

 
Task 3C – Travel Demand Management (TDM)  

• The MPO continues efforts to improve carpooling and alternative modes of 
transportation 

• Conducts regular inventories of Park-and-Ride lots 
• Met with City of Charlottesville Bike and Pedestrian Program staff on 1/7 to discuss Bike 

to Work/Clean Commute Month (May) activities, including a clean commute 
competition utilizing Agile Mile, our existing TDM online program 

• Met with Charlottesville Climate Collaborative staff to promote collaboration between 
their Better Business Challenge program and Rideshare’s employer outreach efforts 

 
Task 3D – Regional Transit Partnership (RTP) 

• Host regular meeting 
• Established three subcommittees: Monthly Ridership Reporting, Regional Driver 

Recruitment and Retention, and Energy Efficient Bus and Resources committees 
• Update MOU to include UVA as a voting partner 

 
Task 3E – On-Call Services 
No activity on this item 

• No activity on this item 
 
 
Task 4: Contracted Projects and Studies 
 



Annual Performance Expenditure Report  Fiscal Year 2020 
 
 
 

Charlottesville Albemarle MPO   Page 8 

 
Task 4 BUDGET  Billed   % Funds 

Expended  
UPWP 
Page  

Contracted Projects and Studies $0 $0 %100 16 

 
Task 3A – Explore opportunities for contracted project and studies. 
 

• Motherload film screening and panel discussion/Q&A at Vinegar Hill Theater 
(collaboration with Piedmont Environmental Council and funded by CACF Strengthening 
Systems Grant) 
 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 

 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
To: MPO Committee Members 
From: Lucinda Shannon, Transportation Planning Manager 
Date: September 8, 2020 
Reference: Title VI Plan Update 
 
Purpose:  
 
This is an initial opportunity for the MPO committees to review updates to the Charlottesville-Albemarle 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (CA-MPO) Title VI Plan and provide feedback.  The federal 
regulations require that there be a Public Hearing prior to any significant changes to the plan being 
made. CA-MPO staff will begin a comment period following the MPO committees’ initial review of this 
document and host a Public Hearing before the updated Title VI Plan is brought to the Policy Board for 
approval.  
 
Background: 
 
As a sub-recipient of federal financial assistance, the CA-MPO, is required to comply with Title VI and 
subsequent nondiscrimination laws, as well as provide an overview of how the CA-MPO addresses 
Executive Order 12898 on Environmental Justice and Executive Order 13166 on Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP). The CA-MPO Title VI Plan describes the measures taken by the CA-MPO to assure 
compliance with the rules and regulations associated with Title VI and subsequent nondiscrimination 
laws, Environmental Justice, and LEP. 
 
The current Title VI Plan was last updated in 2016 and needs another update.  The draft of the Title VI 
Plan included in your packets reflects recommended changes (highlighted in blue). These changes 
include updating the LEP data from the US Census and the Communication and Public Participation 
section of the plan to match the proposed updates to the CA-MPO’s Public Participation Plan.  
 
Recommendation:   
 
At this time, each of the committees and the Policy Board are being asked to review the current draft of 
the Title VI Plan and provide feedback to staff.  Once staff has received feedback, recommendations for 
changes will be incorporated and the Title VI Plan will be distributed publicly for comment.  Once the 
committee and public comments are incorporated, the updated Title VI Plan will be brought to the CA-
MPO Policy Board for approval.  
 
If there are any questions or comments, please contact Lucinda Shannon at lshannon@tjpdc.org.   



    

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Title VI Plan 
 

Approved: DRAFT 

 



  

  
 

 
 

  

This Page intentionally Left Blank 



  

  
 

 
 

Table of Contents 
I. Purpose ........................................................................................................................ 1 
II. Title VI ......................................................................................................................... 1 

Non-Discrimination Acts: ............................................................................................. 2 

Non Discrimination Executive Orders: ......................................................................... 3 

III. Environmental Justice ................................................................................................ 5 
IV. Limited English Proficiency ........................................................................................ 5 

Factor 1 ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Factor 2 ....................................................................................................................... 7 

Factor 3 ....................................................................................................................... 8 

Factor 4 ....................................................................................................................... 8 

LEP Implementation Plan ............................................................................................ 9 

V. Title VI Coordinator ..................................................................................................... 9 
VI. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Community Characteristics .................................... 11 

Race .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Low-Income ............................................................................................................... 14 

Age ............................................................................................................................ 15 

Disabled ..................................................................................................................... 16 

VII. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Responsibilities and Strategies ............................. 18 
Communication and Public Participation ................................................................... 18 

Ongoing Activities .................................................................................................. 18 

MPO Policy Board and Committee Meetings: ........................................................ 20 

Transportation Planning Documents ...................................................................... 21 

Communications with the Public and Community Organizations ........................... 24 

VIII. Discrimination Complaint Procedures .................................................................... 26 
Appendix A: Discrimination Complaint Form ................................................................. 30 
Appendix B: Language Use ........................................................................................... 33 
 

  



  

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

This Page intentionally Left Blank 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

1 
 

I. Purpose 
 

This Title VI/Environmental Justice Plan will discuss how the Charlottesville-Albemarle 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (CA-MPO) mitigates against and avoids 

inadvertently excluding low-income, minority, limited-English-speaking, disabled, and 

elderly populations in the planning process and in the development of numerous 

planning documents. This plan will also include a procedure that allows members of 

these populations to submit grievances regarding perceived discriminatory actions.  

  

II. Title VI 
 

In 1964, the United States Congress passed the Civil Rights Act, an Act that enforced 

constitutional and civil rights for minority populations. This landmark piece of legislation 

was made up of 11 titles, all of which are listed below. Title VI of this Act is the driving 

force behind this document. 

I. Voting Rights       

II. Public Accommodation 

III. Desegregation of Public Facilities 

IV. Desegregation of Public Education 

V. Commission of Civil Rights 

VI. Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs and Activities  

VII. Equal Employment Opportunity 

VIII. Registration and Voting Statistics 

IX. Intervention and Procedure after Removal in Civil Rights Cases 

X. Establishment of Community Relations Service 

XI. Miscellaneous        

Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act is made up of five sections. The first section states 

the following… 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

2 
 

SEC. 601: No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or 

national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 

assistance.  

The remaining four sections discuss how Section 601 will affect federal agencies. 

SEC. 602: No federal agencies can enact or fund projects that do not adhere to the 

criteria outlined in Section 601.  

SEC. 603: Any agency that does not adhere to the parameters outlined in SEC. 601 

and 602 are subject to judicial review.  Funding for any federal agency can be 

withdrawn if SEC. 601 and 602 are not met. 

SEC. 604:  Title VI will not affect employment unless said employment is federally-

funded. 

SEC. 605: Title VI will not affect any federal agencies’ authority regarding contract of 

insurance guaranty. 

Title VI applies to the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO in that the MPO is a federally 

mandated agency, funded primarily through federal tax dollars. Currently the MPO 

handles Title VI through its public participation plan, last updated in 2016. Title VI has 

been expanded by numerous other Acts and Executive Orders. Below is a list of 

nondiscrimination laws that have expanded upon the original scope of Title VI. 

Non-Discrimination Acts: 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970 prohibits unfair and inequitable treatment of persons displaced or 

whose property will be acquired as a result of federal and federal-aid programs 

and projects. 

• The Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973 states that no person shall, on the 

grounds of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

3 
 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal 

assistance under this title or carried on under this title. 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 states that no qualified 

handicapped person shall, solely by reason of his handicap, be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 

any program or activity that receives or benefits from federal financial assistance. 

This Act protects qualified individuals from discrimination based on their 

disability. 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 states that no person shall, on the basis of 

age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 

to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 

assistance. This act prohibits age discrimination in federally-assisted programs. 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, P.L.100-209 amends Title VI of the 

1964 Civil Rights Act to make it clear that discrimination is prohibited throughout 

an entire agency if any part of the agency receives federal assistance. 

• The American Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 prohibits discrimination against 

people with disabilities in employment, transportation, public accommodation, 

communications, and governmental activities. 

• 23 CFR Part 200 – Federal Highway Administration regulations: Title VI Program 

and Related Statutes – Implementation and Review Procedures. 

• 49 CFR Part 21 – Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs. 

• 23 CFR Part 450 – Federal Highway Administration planning regulations. 

• 23 CFR Part 771 – Federal Highway Administration regulations, Environmental 

Impact Procedures. 

Non Discrimination Executive Orders: 

• Executive Order 12898 – Environmental Justice (February 11, 1994), a 

presidential mandate to address equity and fairness toward low-income and 

minority persons/population. Executive Order 12898 organized and explained the 

federal government’s commitment to promote Environmental Justice. Each 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

4 
 

federal agency was directed to review its procedures and make environmental 

justice part of its mission. U.S. DOT Order 5610.2 (April 15, 1997) expanded 

upon Executive Order 12898 requirements and describes process for 

incorporating Environmental Justice principles into DOT programs, policies, and 

activities. FHWA Order 6640.23 (December 2, 1998) – FHWA Actions to Address 

Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations 

• DOT Order 5610.2 on Environmental Justice summarized and expanded upon 

the requirements of Executive Order 12898 to include all policies, programs, and 

other activities that are undertaken, funded, or approved by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), or other U.S. 

DOT components. 

• Executive Order 13166 – Limited English Proficiency (August 11, 2000), a 

presidential directive to federal agencies to ensure people who have limited 

English proficiency have meaningful access to services. Executive Order 13166 

ensures federal agencies and their recipients to improve access for persons with 

Limited English Proficiency to federally-conducted and federally assisted 

programs and activities. 

• The National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969 addresses both social 

and economic impacts of environmental justice. NEPA stresses the importance 

of providing for “all Americans, safe, healthful, productive and aesthetically 

pleasing surroundings,” and provides a requirement for taking a “systematic 

interdisciplinary approach” to aid in considering environmental and community 

factors in decision-making 

• HWA/FTA Memorandum Implementing Title VI Requirements in 
Metropolitan and Statewide Planning - This memorandum provides 

clarification for field officers on how to ensure that environmental justice is 

considered during current and future planning certification reviews. The intent of 

this memorandum was for planning officials to understand that environmental 

justice is equally as important during the planning stages as it is during the 

project development stages. 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

5 
 

III. Environmental Justice 
 

In 1994, President Bill Clinton signed Executive Order 12898 that directed federal 

agencies to develop strategies to mitigate against adversely impacting the health or 

environmental quality of minority and low-income populations. This order also pushed 

forward efforts to keep these populations more informed about their communities and 

their rights. 

Adverse effects are defined as… 

• Bodily or physical harm 

• Pollution (noise, water, air, soil, or other) 

• Destruction of elements and features that can bind a community, such as 

available resources, aesthetics, and economic sufficiency 

• Displacement of people, employment, or resources 

• Isolation from a broader community 

• Delay in receiving available resources 

Environmental Justice is meant to address the undue burden of these adverse effects 

on these specialized populations. This Executive Order was structured to not only 

require federal agencies and those benefitting from federal funding to mitigate potential 

adverse effects on these specialized populations, but also empower these populations 

to know their rights and participate in the betterment of their community.  

 

IV. Limited English Proficiency 

 

Like the Environmental Justice Executive Order, the Limited English Proficiency 

Executive Order is structured to avoid adversely affecting these populations and to 

develop strategies to better engage these populations in their community. This order 

was signed by President Clinton in 2000. Limited English-speaking populations are 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

6 
 

often isolated from engaging in their larger communities. By making materials and 

opportunities accessible to these populations it becomes easier to communicate and 

perhaps determine methods of providing necessary resources.  

In considering how to access these populations four factors need to be addressed. 

These factors include…  

• Demographics: Knowing where the populations are located. 

• Frequency: Determining how often the populations are contacted or engaged by 

the agency. 

• Importance: Determining if the issues under consideration are important to these 

communities. 

• Resources: Keeping an inventory of the resources available to engage these 

populations. 

This analysis, known as the four-factor analysis, is used to determine which language 

assistance services are appropriate to address the identified needs of the Limited 

English Proficiency (LEP) population. Below is the four-step process taken by the 

Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO. 

Factor 1 

Demographics: Assessment of the Number and Proportion of LEP Persons Likely to be 

Served or Encountered in the Eligible Service Population. 

The Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO has reviewed census data on the number of 

individuals in its service area that have LEP, as well as the languages that they speak.  

This data comes from the American Community Survey (2014-2018). This data 

indicates the extent to which translations into other language are needed to meet the 

needs of LEP persons within the community.  Because the MPO’s boundaries 

encompass both the City of Charlottesville and portions of Albemarle County, it should 

be noted that the figures below represent all the population of the City of Charlottesville 

and all of the population of Albemarle County, thus these numbers are not specific to 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

7 
 

the MPO. It should also be noted that these figures are estimates that consider the 

major language spoken at home. These figures do not assess if these populations are 

fluent in English. 

• Spanish      6,830   4.7% 

• Indo-European     5,855  4.0% 

• Asian and Pacific Island Languages  4,818  3.3% 

• Other Languages     1,712  1.2% 

 

The most pervasive, non-English language in the region is Spanish, which makes up 

more than 4.7% of the total population.  The Indo-European and the Asian and Pacific 

Island groups represent 4.0% and 3.3% of total population respectively.  It is important 

to note that these broad census categories encompass numerous languages.  Please 

see Appendix B for the full list of languages. 

Factor 2 

Frequency: Determining how often the populations are contacted or engaged by the 

agency. 

The Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO is rarely approached for information by any 

populations who do not have a reasonable competent grasp of the English language. 

This agency has made efforts for certain projects to create materials in both English and 

Spanish should the project affect these populations, but this need is on a project-by-

project basis.  

The goal of the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO is to make sure that for any potential 

project that could affect this community the MPO staff makes every effort to include all 

stakeholders that could be affected by the project, including limited-English-speaking 

populations. The MPO performs outreach when needed and provides assistance when 

requested.  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

8 
 

 

Factor 3 

Importance: Determining if the issues under consideration are important to these 

communities. 

 

As stated above, the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO provides materials for limited-

English-speaking populations if they are needed for a particular project. For example, 

the MPO recently did a customer satisfaction survey to determine how riders felt about 

Charlottesville Area Transit (CAT). The survey was both in English and in Spanish due 

to the extreme importance of transit to the Hispanic population in our region. This 

allowed Spanish-speaking citizens the opportunity to contribute input on a service that 

was important to them. According to the survey responses, the Spanish-speaking 

population generally had the same opinion about CAT service as the English-speaking 

population.  

Factor 4 

Resources: Keeping an inventory of the resources available to engage these 

populations. 

The following language assistance measures are currently being provided by the 

Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO. The MPO provides translators for MPO meetings for 

Spanish-speaking citizens if given at least two days’ notice. The MPO will do its upmost 

to provide translators for other languages if requested. The MPO will also make major 

plans available in a variety of languages if requested to do so. This agency aims to 

complete a document translation within a reasonable timeframe. Also, for various 

projects the MPO makes every effort to include all stakeholders in the planning and 

implementation process. When a project affects a limited-English-speaking population, 

the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO takes action to make the information about the 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

9 
 

project as accessible as possible.  At this time this agency has not had to do any of the 

actions mentioned above. Because of this, it is very difficult to assess the costs that 

would be incurred. The MPO is prepared for these costs should the need arise. 

LEP Implementation Plan 

Through the four-factor analysis, the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO has determined 

that the following types of language assistance are most needed and feasible. 

 

Limited-English-speaking populations make up approximately 11.7% of the total 

100,664 residents age 5 years and older in Albemarle County and 16.6% of the total 

44,468 residents 5 years and older in the City of Charlottesville.  The largest group 

within this cohort is Spanish-speaking individuals. The MPO will do outreach to the 

Spanish-speaking population as a part of our general community outreach or our 

project-specific efforts. Again, the MPO will do its upmost to engage all stakeholder 

groups and meet all limited-English-speaking requests.  Further demographic 

information may be found in Appendix B. 

V. Title VI Coordinator 
 

The Title VI coordinator is expected to maintain the Title VI plan, develop strategies to 

maintain Title VI compliance, and oversee the Discrimination Complaint Process. Below 

is a list of the Title VI Coordinator’s specific responsibilities. 

• Monitor and review agency programs, policies, and activities for Title VI 

compliance in primary and special emphasis areas;  

• Collect and review statistical data (race, color, sex, age, disability or national 

origin) of participants and beneficiaries of state highway programs, to prevent or 

eliminate potential disparate impact or disparate treatment discrimination; 

• Work with staff involved in procurement or consulting contracts to insure that Title 

VI compliance is met; and mitigate any issue if not met; 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

10 
 

• Train new staff members on Title VI compliance procedures; 

• Maintain a list of interpretation service providers; 

• Periodically review and update the agencies Title VI Plan; 

• Attend trainings to keep aware of nondiscrimination opportunities and 

procedures; and, 

• Resolve Title VI complaints in a timely and thorough fashion 

 

The Title VI coordinator will be responsible for incorporating Title VI efforts into various 

plans produced by the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO. The Title VI coordinator will also 

make every effort to insure that all information regarding the Charlottesville-Albemarle 

MPO is reasonably accessible to all populations.  Informational materials will be readily 

available both on the MPO’s website and in the TJPDC offices. 

The CA-MPO has designated the Executive Director of the Thomas Jefferson Planning 

District Commission, Chip Boyles, as the Title VI Coordinator.  He may be contacted at 

434.422.4821 or by email at cboyles@tjpdc.org. 

Other MPO employees that could be a part of the Title VI process include the TJPDC’s 

Executive Director, who will be kept informed of all Title VI complaints and has taken 

numerous Title VI training courses over the course of his/her career. Also, the TJPDC’s 

Administrative Assistant will likely be the first point of contact if a Title VI or 

Environmental Justice complaint or request is made.  The Administrative Assistant will 

do the initial processing for these situations and will forward the request on to the Title 

VI coordinator. 

 

 

 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

11 
 

VI. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Community Characteristics 
 

Figure 1 on the following page is provided to help orient the reader with the 

Charlottesville-Albemarle area.  The large map displays the Charlottesville-Albemarle 

MPO broken down by block group.  Similarly, the informational maps in the following 

sections (Figure 2 and Figure 3) use Charlottesville-Albemarle data sets on a block 

group scale.  The column of maps on the right of Figure 1, from top to bottom, show the 

Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission’s jurisdiction, the middle map shows 

the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO within the state of Virginia, and the bottom map 

shows the distinction between the campus and the City of Charlottesville within the city 

limits. 

  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

12 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

TJPDC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: MPO & TJPDC 

MPO Boundary TJPDC Region 

Virginia 

UVA & City  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

13 
 

Race 

The percentage of the minority population for each census tract is shown in figure 2.  

The data was extracted from the 2014 to 2018 American Community Survey 5-Year 

Estimates.  The percentage of the minority population was calculated by dividing the 

“White Alone” category by the total population figures for each census tract.  Shades of 

dark blue represent higher concentrations of minority populations.  Highly diverse 

census tracts can be found within the boundaries of the City of Charlottesville, with less 

diverse census tracts to the west of the City.   

 

 

 
Figure 2: Percent Minority  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

14 
 

Low-Income 

The map in figure 3 displays the percentage of the population at the block group level 

living below the poverty line based on 2018 American Community Survey data 

estimates.  The darker shades of blue denote block groups with higher percentages of 

individuals living below the poverty line.   It is important to note that the data can be 

misleading, as a large proportion of students occupy block groups within close proximity 

to the University.  Students typically report lower incomes, thus placing them below the 

poverty threshold and causing the data to skew towards an inflated population in that 

category.    

 

 

 
Figure 3: Percent Below Poverty Line  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

15 
 

 

Age 

Figure 4 represents the percentage of individuals in the 65 and older age category by 

the census tract level, using data extracted from the 2018 American Community Survey.   

Darker shades of blue denotes higher percentages of individuals in the 65 and older 

age bracket.  As expected, census tracts within close proximity to the UVa grounds 

have low concentrations of older individuals, while census tracts outside of the City of 

Charlottesville boundaries have proportionately higher concentrations of older 

individuals.   

 

 

Figure 4: Percent 65 and Older 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

16 
 

Disabled 

The 2014 to 2018 American Community Survey five-year estimate data on county/city 

level estimates regarding disability characteristics shows that, because of the higher 

density in Charlottesville, the amount of people with disabilities is similar between the 

county and city. Table 1 below provides estimates of these characteristics for Albemarle 

County and the City of Charlottesville. This data was pulled from the 2014 to 2018, 5-

year ACS estimates. It is important to note that the ACS data is based on sampling 

data. ACS requires a data confidence level of 90%, meaning that each figure could be 

off by as much as 10% either high or lower. The figures below should be treated as 

estimates. Margin of error information is available via American Factfinder. 

This data shows that for both Albemarle County and the City of Charlottesville the 

population with a disability is about 9% of the total population. The estimates increase 

with age, and estimates begin to skew toward the category “With an ambulatory 

difficulty”. The amount of minority people with a disability is proportionally lower than the 

white population with disabilities.  

  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

17 
 

 

Disability Characteristics 

  Albemarle County 
City of 
Charlottesville 

  With a Disability With a Disability 
Total civilian noninstitutionalized 
population 9461 9002 
SEX     
Male 4741 3884 
Female 4720 5118 
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN     
White alone 7811 6359 
Black or African American alone 1139 1978 
American Indian and Alaska Native alone 22 45 
Asian alone 192 314 
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific 
Islander alone 23 23 
Some other race alone 58 41 
Two or more races 216 242 
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino 7662 6229 
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 209 207 
AGE     
Under 5 years 0 0 
5 to 17 years 541 337 
18 to 34 years 998 1449 
35 to 64 years 3055 3239 
65 to 74 years 1608 1421 
75 years and over 3259 2556 
DISABILITY TYPE BY DETAILED AGE     
With a hearing difficulty 2979 2252 
With a vision difficulty 1723 1714 
With a cognitive difficulty 3018 3174 
With an ambulatory difficulty 4731 4862 
With a self-care difficulty 1878 1773 
With an independent living difficulty 3243 3337 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2014-2018 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 

  

Table 1: Disability Characteristics 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

18 
 

VII. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Responsibilities and Strategies 
 

As a federally mandated and funded agency the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO is 

required to develop strategies to engage populations that are low-income, minority, 

limited-English-speaking, disabled, and elderly. The MPO makes efforts to ensure that 

its planning efforts are holistic and will include all populations that are part of the 

regional community.  

In the Unified Planning and Work Program (UPWP), the MPO is responsible for a 

variety of tasks, including administration tasks, long-range planning, short-range 

planning and special projects (as needed). All of these tasks fall under several general 

responsibilities. With all of these tasks the MPO is responsible for communicating its 

efforts with numerous stakeholders, including the public. Therefore, Communication and 

Public Participation are a central part to the MPO’s activities. MPO staff is also 

responsible for the development and maintenance of two transportation planning 

documents, the Long-Range Transportation Plan and the Transportation Improvement 

Program. All transportation projects that are anticipated to receive federal funds must be 

included in these documents. Therefore, the MPO and its stakeholders must work 

together to ensure that the projects listed in these two documents, do not cause 

adverse effects to these specific population groups. 

Communication and Public Participation 

To reach out to the community the MPO makes every effort to be as broad sweeping as 

possible. As part of our existing Public Participation Plan the MPO has numerous on-

going activities to keep the public informed. These activities are listed below and in the 

Public Participation Plan. 

Ongoing Activities 

 The Thomas Jefferson Planning District publishes a regular report that informs 

the public about the PDC and MPO’s activities.  The mailing list for this report 

includes a broad cross-section of civic organizations, business leaders, press 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

19 
 

members, leaders in education, public transit officials, elected officials, and 

members of the community who request to receive the newsletter.  

 TJPDC publishes News Briefs on its website of the efforts and accomplishments 

for the TJPDC and the Charlottesville MPO.  

 The TJPDC and CA-MPO staff is available on a full-time basis to respond to 

direct questions and inquiries from citizens concerning transportation plans, 

programs, and the transportation planning process for the region.  Staff will make 

presentations at the request of local civic organizations and routinely provides 

information to the local print and electronic media.  Staff will be accessible to the 

public through a variety of means (i.e. e-mail, phone, and in-person).  

 The TJPDC maintains an extensive library of transportation, environmental, 

demographic, community planning, and GIS materials that are available for use 

by the public during the regular workday (8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.).   

 The TJPDC and the MPO maintain relationships with local academic institutions, 

making presentations to college and graduate level classes and often hosting an 

undergraduate or graduate intern on staff.  The CA-MPO regularly utilizes the 

assistance of the CTAC in its transportation planning activities.  CTAC is 

composed of City, County and MPO-appointed community members with interest 

and expertise in planning-related topics.  

 In an effort to further engage with a diverse audience, the TJPDC maintains a 

Facebook page to periodically update page followers on topics of interest related 

to the TJPDC and the MPO.  This format allows for information to easily be 

disseminated to the public.   

 According to the provisions of SAFETEA-LU, the TJPDC and the CA-MPO 

maintain a list of “interested parties” and “stakeholder organizations.” TJPDC 

staff will include to the extent practicable, but not limited to: private citizens, 

public agencies, providers of freight services, private providers of transportation, 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

20 
 

representatives of public transportation, employee representatives of users of 

pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation facilities, and representatives of 

the disabled.  All citizens/groups requesting inclusion on the MPO mailing and e-

mail list will be added. 

 

MPO Policy Board and Committee Meetings: 

 All MPO Policy Board and Committee meeting agendas will include meeting 

guidelines establishing time limits and procedures for public interaction with the 

Policy Board and Committees.  

 As far as technically possible, access to MPO Policy Board and Committee 

members via email will be facilitated.  

 

 All meetings of the Policy Board, Technical Committee and other MPO 

committees will be open to the public and will be held in locations accessible to 

persons with handicaps and on public transit lines.  In circumstances where 

electronic meetings are authorized and held, the meeting information will be 

posted on the MPO website at the time that the agenda is posted with details on 

how the public can access the meeting.  Meeting information will also be 

distributed electronically.   

 

 Arrangements will be made for interpreters for hearing impaired individuals, and 

every effort will be made to ensure provision of interpreters for non-English 

speaking persons, provided a request is submitted at least two days before the 

meeting.  For meetings conducted electronically, interpretation services may be 

provided through closed captioning options. 

 

 Every effort will be made for public hearings, workshops, and forums to be 

scheduled at times that are accessible and convenient. 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

21 
 

Transportation Planning Documents 

Regarding specific transportation plans, the MPO makes efforts to include stakeholders 

in both the development and approval of these regionally significant documents. For the 

development process, the efforts can vary depending on the type of plan. In the 

development of new plans MPO staff makes every effort to not only make sure that 

these plans consider minority and low-income populations, but also attempt to include 

these populations in the development of these plans. How we work to include these 

populations differs with each plan. For example, for the previous Long Range 

Transportation Plan  (LRTP) MPO staff presented the draft plan at community meetings 

for the public housing developments within the MPO; a method that allowed MPO staff 

to connect with both minority and low-income populations. MPO staff also hosted an 

open house for local citizens that focused on information for the 2045 LRTP.  The 

workshop was heavily advertised through various outlets, in order to capture 

participation from a diverse cross-section of this community. MPO staff also reached out 

to agencies that deal with low-income and minority populations in an effort to piggyback 

on their outreach efforts.  During FY16, staff held a transportation academy in an effort 

to further engage with citizens of the community on a variety of transportation-related 

topics, including future growth patterns of the community and transit.  Each effort is 

unique and tailored to the planning document that is being developed.  Below is a list of 

methods MPO staff can implement during plan development. 

• Encourage and accept public input in a variety of ways (i.e. by mail, in person, 

website, phone and via e-mail) 

• Include a broad segment of the population in development of programs, plans, 

and studies by conducting regional workshops to obtain public input on 

transportation and land use issues. 

• Conduct focus group meetings in traditionally underserved communities to 

ensure the interests of these groups are incorporated into long range planning 

efforts. 

• Meet with and identify needs of other groups with special interests in the 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

22 
 

community. 

• Continually experiment with a wide variety of marketing tools and visualization 

techniques (within limited budgets) to describe transportation plans (including 

LRTP and TIP) and to incorporate public participation into planning workshops. 

• In developing the LRTP and TIP, the MPO will consult with agencies and officials 

responsible for other planning activities within the MPO that are affected by 

transportation or coordinate its planning process with such planning activities. 

• The MPO will consider other related planning activities within the metropolitan 

area when developing the LTRP, TIP, and other relevant plans or studies. 

• The MPO will provide an additional opportunity for public comment if the final 

LRTP, TIP or other transportation plans differ significantly from the version that 

were made available for comment by the MPO and raises new material issues 

which interested parties could not reasonably have foreseen from the public 

involvement efforts. 

During the approval process the MPO follows strict guidelines that are meant to allow 

members of the public and other stakeholders, ample opportunity to review plans and 

provide feedback. Below is a list of the MPO’s plan approval process. 

 

1. The Policy Board will advertise using the standard MPO public notice procedures 

for input no fewer than two times prior to adoption for: 

a. The Unified Planning and Work Program  

b. Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  

c. The Long Range Plan (LRP) 

 

2. The Policy Board will hold no fewer than two public hearings prior to adoption of 

the aforementioned documents, and will provide for a 30-day public comment 

period between the first advertisement of the public hearing and adoption of the 

document.  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

23 
 

 

3. Legal notice of public hearings: 

a. Will be published two weeks prior in The Daily Progress, Charlottesville (a 

local daily newspaper) 

b. Will be published two weeks prior in The Free Press, Richmond (a 

statewide publication serving African American communities) 

c. Will advertise on the Charlottesville Radio Station, WPVC 94.7 (serving 

Latin American communities during the El Club Del Sabor program) 

d. Will advertise on-line with Naciones Radio 

e. Will be sent to those on the MPO contact list and the media two weeks 

prior 

f. Will be posted on the TJPDC website two weeks prior and in the TJPDC 

offices 

 

4. Draft copies of the aforementioned documents will be made available two weeks 

prior for public review:  

a. On the MPO website 

b. Through MPO-area public libraries 

c. Local planning offices 

d. VDOT and MPO offices 

 

5. Advertisements of MPO public hearings for the aforementioned documents, as 

well as for critical or adjacent projects that will influence regional transportation; 

will be posted in central places of low-income and minority neighborhoods. 

 

6. At least one public hearing will be held by the Policy Board regarding 

amendments to the UPWP, TIP, and LRP. 

 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

24 
 

7. Public forums will be held during the update or amendment of the LRP and TIP. 

 

8. Summaries of all comments received and responses to these comments will be 

included in the TIP, LRTP, and other relevant documents (e.g. meeting minutes). 

 

9. Public information sessions and/or interactive workshops will be held regarding 

other major studies affecting the region's transportation network as deemed 

necessary by the Policy Board or by request of the public. 

 

During FY16, MPO staff conducted a strategic planning survey in an effort to help guide 

the future direction of the MPO.  The survey was distributed to local elected officials, 

MPO Committee members, and state and local planning staff.  Respondents to the 

survey were in agreement that current MPO Committees lack diversity and greater 

efforts should be made to further engage these populations.  Going forward, the MPO 

and its staff will actively advocate for more diversity and foster a sense of inclusion.  

One example of this is the FY2021 Equity in Transportation project where staff will 

identify under-represented/underserved communities and identify key stakeholders in 

those communities. We plan to connect with those key stakeholders to improve 

outreach and engagement with underserved populations.  

Communications with the Public and Community Organizations1 

 The MPO will coordinate with the statewide transportation planning public 

involvement and consultation process, as appropriate. 

 The MPO will identify and communicate with populations traditionally 

underserved by the transportation network, such as those with disabilities and 

 

1 The MPO Policy Board may act on an agenda item in the absence of proper notice with approval of a waiver of requirement by 75 
percent vote. 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

25 
 

low-income persons through organizations and media outlets known to serve 

these populations. 

 The MPO has identified locations of low income and minority communities using 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and has included this mapping data in the 

Title VI Plan.  The MPO will also seek input from these communities throughout 

the planning phase, and specifically for the TIP and the Long Range 

Transportation Plan updates.  Methods for communicating to this audience may 

include:  

o Presenting at or sponsoring a community meeting in the targeted area 

and/or 

o Seeking representatives from the community to participate in an MPO 

meeting focusing their concerns and/or 

o Seeking representatives from the community and/or from service agencies 

familiar with the needs of these communities  

 Information regarding achievement of goals and deliverables identified in the 

UPWP will be provided for public review.  A final report on the work programmed 

in the UPWP will be prepared and available for public review annually. 

 Meeting materials will be made available electronically and/or distributed to those 

on the MPO contact list and to the media approximately one week prior to the 

meeting. 

 Notice will be sent to those on the MPO contact list approximately one week prior 

to each meeting to announce when meeting materials are electronically 

available. 

 Arrangements will be made to accommodate individuals that require special 

assistance to review meeting materials and other documents and reports. 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

26 
 

VIII. Discrimination Complaint Procedures 
 

Title VI, Environmental Justice, and other subsequent laws prohibit discrimination based 

on race, color, national origin, handicap, sex, age, income-status and limited-English-

speaking proficiency. As a federally-funded agency, the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO 

has developed a method for receiving and handling such complaints should they be 

made.  The complaint procedures are outlined as follows: 

1. Any person who believes that he or she, or any specific class of persons, has 

been subjected to discrimination or retaliation, programs or activities, as 

prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and its related 

statutes, may file a written complaint. This complaint must be submitted using the 

appropriate Title VI form, which is included as an appendix to this document. All 

written complaints received by the MPO shall be referred immediately by the 

MPO’s Title VI Coordinator, to the VDOT’s Central Office: Civil Rights Division 

and FHWA District Office.  

 

2. In order to have the complaint considered under this procedure, the complainant 

must file the complaint no later than 180 days after the date of the alleged act of 

discrimination. In this case, the recipient or his/her designee may extend the time 

for filing or waive the time limit in the interest of justice, specifying in writing the 

reason for so doing. 

 

3. Complaints shall be in writing and shall be signed by the complainant and/or the 

complainant’s representative. Complaints should set forth as fully as possible the 

facts and circumstances surrounding the claimed discrimination. In the event that 

a person makes a verbal complaint of discrimination to an officer or employee of 

the recipient, the person shall be interviewed by the Title VI Coordinator. If 

necessary, the Title VI Coordinator will assist the person in putting the complaint 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

27 
 

in writing and submit the written version of the complaint to the person for 

signature. The complaint shall then be handled in the usual manner. 

 

4. Within 10 days of the MPO receiving the allegation in writing, the Title VI 

Coordinator will inform the complainant of action taken or proposed action to 

process the allegation, advise the respondent of their rights under Title VI and 

related statutes, and advise the complainant of other avenues of redress 

available, such as the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) and the 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 

 

5. Within 10 days, a letter will be sent to the VDOT Central Office, Civil Rights 

Division, and a copy to the FHWA Virginia Division Office. This letter will list the 

names of the parties involved, the basis of the complaint, and the assigned 

investigator. 

 

6. In the case of a complaint against the Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO, a VDOT 

investigator will prepare a final investigative report and send it to the 

complainant, respondent (MPO person listed), the MPO Title VI Coordinator, and 

FHWA Virginia Division.  

 

7. Generally, the following information will be included in every notification to the 

VDOT Office of Civil Rights: 

• Name, address, and phone number of the complainant. 

• Name(s) and address (es) of alleged discriminating official(s). 

• Basis of complaint (i.e., race, color, national origin, sex, age, 

handicap/disability, income status, limited English proficiency). 

• Date of alleged discriminatory act(s). 

• Date of complaint received by the recipient. 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

28 
 

• A statement of the complaint. 

• Other agencies (state, local or federal) where the complaint has been 

filed. 

• An explanation of the actions the recipient has taken or proposed to 

resolve the issue raised in the complaint. 

 

8. Within 60 days, the MPO Title VI Administrator will conduct and complete an 

investigation of the allegation and based on the information obtained, will render 

a recommendation for action in a report of findings to the Executive Director of 

the recipient of federal assistance. The complaint should be resolved by informal 

means whenever possible. Such informal attempts and their results will be 

summarized in the report of findings. 

 

9. Within 90 days of receipt of the complaint, the MPO Title VI Administrator will 

notify the complainant in writing of the final decision reached, including the 

proposed disposition of the matter. The notification will advise the complainant of 

his/her appeal rights with the Virginia Department of Transportation or the 

Federal Highway Administration, if they are dissatisfied with the final decision 

rendered by the MPO. The MPO will also provide the VDOT Civil Rights Central 

Office with a copy of the determination and report findings. 

 

10. In the case a nondiscrimination complaint that was originated at the MPO is 

turned over to and investigated by VDOT, FHWA or another agency, the MPO 

will monitor the investigation and notify the complainant of updates, in 

accordance with applicable regulations and VDOT policies and procedures. 

 

11. In accordance with federal law, the MPO will require that applicants of federal 

assistance notify the MPO of any law suits filed against the applicant or sub-



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

29 
 

recipients of federal assistance or alleging discrimination; and a statement as to 

whether the applicant has been found in noncompliance with any relevant civil 

rights requirements. 

 

12. The MPO will collect demographic data on staff, committees, and program areas 

in accordance with 23 CFR, 49 CFR and VDOT’s established procedures and 

guidelines. 

 

13. Pursuant to the Virginia Public Records Act (VPRA) § 42.1-76 et seq., the MPO 

will retain Discrimination Complaint Forms and a log of all complaints filed with or 

investigated by the MPO. 

 

14. Records of complaints and related data will be made available by request in 

accordance with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act 

  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

30 
 

Appendix A: Discrimination Complaint Form 

 

Please provide the following information in order to process your complaint. Assistance 

is available upon request. Complete this form and mail or deliver: 

Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission, Title VI Coordinator, 401 E Water 

Street, Charlottesville, VA 22902 

You can reach our office Monday-Friday from 8:00am to 5:00pm at (434) 979-7310, by 

email at info@tjpdc.org. 

  

Complainant’sName:_____________________________________________________ 

Street 

Address:_______________________________________________________________ 

City: _________________ State: ___________________ Zip Code:________________ 

Telephone 

No.(Home):__________________________(Business):_______________________ 

Email 

Address_______________________________________________________________ 

Person discriminated against (if other than complainant) 

Name: 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address: _________________________________________________________ 

City: _______________________ State: __________________ Zip Code: __________ 

mailto:info@tjpdc.org


Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

31 
 

Telephone No. (Home): __________________________________________________ 

The name and address of the agency, institution, or department you believe 

discriminated against you. 

Name: _______________________________________________________________ 

Street Address: _________________________________________________________ 

City: __________________________State: ________________Zip Code: __________ 

 

Date of incident resulting in discrimination: __________________________ 

 

Describe how you were discriminated against. What happened and who was 

responsible? If additional space is required, please either use back of form or attach 

extra sheets to form. 

 

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

32 
 

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

_______________ 

  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

33 
 

Appendix B: Language Use 

 

Survey/Program: American Community Survey 

Universe: Population 5 years and over 

Year: 2018 

Estimates: 5-Year 

Table ID: C16001 

 

 

Language Spoken at Home 

 Albemarle County, Virginia Charlottesville City, Virginia 

 

Label Estimate Estimate 

Total: 100664 44468 

Speak only English 88836 37081 

Spanish: 4605 2225 

Speak English "very well" 2720 1401 

Speak English less than 1885 824 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

34 
 

"very well" 

French, Haitian, or Cajun: 473 337 

Speak English "very well" 428 326 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
45 11 

German or other West 

Germanic languages: 
397 245 

Speak English "very well" 371 178 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
26 67 

Russian, Polish, or other 

Slavic languages: 
600 213 

Speak English "very well" 405 162 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
195 51 

Other Indo-European 

languages: 
2208 1382 

Speak English "very well" 1325 910 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

35 
 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
883 472 

Korean: 529 159 

Speak English "very well" 326 132 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
203 27 

Chinese (incl. Mandarin, 

Cantonese): 
1376 968 

Speak English "very well" 718 638 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
658 330 

Vietnamese: 229 171 

Speak English "very well" 182 114 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
47 57 

Tagalog (incl. Filipino): 171 18 

Speak English "very well" 161 6 

Speak English less than 10 12 



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

36 
 

"very well" 

Other Asian and Pacific 

Island languages: 
659 538 

Speak English "very well" 450 355 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
209 183 

Arabic: 300 421 

Speak English "very well" 204 248 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
96 173 

Other and unspecified 

languages: 
281 710 

Speak English "very well" 244 279 

Speak English less than 

"very well" 
37 431 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2014-2018 American Community Survey 5-Year 

Estimates 

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Charlottesville%20city,%20Virginia&text=Langu

age%20spoken%20at%20home&t=Language%20Spoken%20at%20Home&g=0500000

US51003,51540&tid=ACSDT5Y2018.C16001&hidePreview=true 

https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Charlottesville%20city,%20Virginia&text=Language%20spoken%20at%20home&t=Language%20Spoken%20at%20Home&g=0500000US51003,51540&tid=ACSDT5Y2018.C16001&hidePreview=true
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Charlottesville%20city,%20Virginia&text=Language%20spoken%20at%20home&t=Language%20Spoken%20at%20Home&g=0500000US51003,51540&tid=ACSDT5Y2018.C16001&hidePreview=true
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=Charlottesville%20city,%20Virginia&text=Language%20spoken%20at%20home&t=Language%20Spoken%20at%20Home&g=0500000US51003,51540&tid=ACSDT5Y2018.C16001&hidePreview=true


Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 
 

Memorandum 
 
 

To: MPO-Policy Board 
From: Lucinda Shannon, Transportation Planning Manager 
Date: September 23, 2020 
Reference: Adjustments to the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 
 
 
 

Purpose: To adjust two Maintenance blocks in the TIP by transferring $6,096,000 from Preventative Maintenance Traffic 
and Safety to Preventative Maintenance System Preservation in FY 2020.  
 
 
 

Old Table 

 
 
 
 
 
New/Adjusted Table  

 
 
  



Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
POB 1505, 401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 

(434) 979-7310 phone ● info@tjpdc.org email 
 

 
 
Old Table 

 
 
 
 
New/Adjusted Table 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Action Item:  MPO staff recommends a motion to approve the TIP adjustments.  
 

Once the TIP adjustments are reviewed and approved by the MPO Policy Board, the TIP document for FY18-21 will be 
updated with the modified tables.  

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the MPO Policy Board on September 23, 2020, approved the amendments proposed above. 
 
Signature: 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Michael Payne, Policy Board Chair 
Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 
 
 

If there are any questions, please contact Lucinda Shannon at lshannon@tjpdc.org or (434) 979-7310 Ext.113. 

mailto:lshannon@tjpdc.org

	3a MPO Public Participation Plan packet 9-8-2020
	MPO Public Participation Plan packet 9-4-2020.pdf
	MPO Public Participation Plan packet 9-4-2020.pdf
	PPP Public Comments

	PPP Pietila

	3b 2020 Public Participation Plan - Public Draft 9-4-2020
	4c DRAFT Policy Board Minutes July 22 2020
	Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization
	POB 1505, 401 E. Water Street, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org
	(434) 979-7310 phone ● (434) 979-1597 fax ● info@tjpdc.org email
	_________________________________________________________________
	Committee – Voting Members   Staff
	Non-Voting& Alternates
	Call to Order:


	5a Smart Scale Resolution MPO Submission Fontaine
	5b Fontaine Concept Sketch
	0029-0029B Exhibit
	0029-0029B Exhibit2


	6a EV Study Memo
	6b Electric Vehicle Study Scope 8.4.2020
	Background
	Goal
	Milestones
	Steps Towards the Milestones
	1. Identify and consult with stakeholders
	2. Needs Statement and Data Collection
	3. Recommendations


	7 Smart Scale Memo Procedures CTAC
	8a 2020 Annual MPO Report
	Introduction
	Task 1: Administration        Budgeted $60,000
	Task 1A – Reporting and Compliance with Regulations
	Task 1B – Staffing Committees
	Task 1C – Information Sharing
	Task 1D – Cross-Jurisdictional Communication
	Task 1E – Public Participation
	Task 1F – Online Resources

	Task 2: Long Range Transportation Planning     Budgeted $68,000
	Task 2A – Regional Transportation Revenue Study
	Task 2B – Bicycle and Pedestrian Corridor Evaluation
	Task 2C – Regional Transit Planning
	Task 2D – Assist with VTRANS Update

	Task 3: Short Range Planning       Budgeted $76,910
	Task 3A – Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	Task 3B– Short Range Project Planning
	Task 3C – Travel Demand Management (TDM)
	Task 3D – Regional Transit Partnership (RTP)
	Task 3E – On-Call Services

	Task 4: Contracted Projects and Studies       Budgeted $0
	Task 3A – Explore opportunities for contracted project and studies.

	Background
	Task 1: Administration
	Task 1A – Reporting and Compliance with Regulations
	Task 1B – Staffing Committees
	Task 1C – Information Sharing
	Task 1D – Cross-Jurisdictional Communication
	Task 1E – Public Participation
	Task 1F – Online Resources

	Task 2: Long Range Transportation Planning
	Task 2A – Regional Transportation Revenue Study
	Task 2B – Bicycle and Pedestrian Corridor Evaluation
	Task 2C – Regional Transit Planning
	Task 2D – Assist with VTRANS Update

	Task 3: Short Range Planning
	Task 3A – Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	Task 3B– Short Range Project Planning
	Task 3C – Travel Demand Management (TDM)
	Task 3D – Regional Transit Partnership (RTP)
	Task 3E – On-Call Services

	Task 4: Contracted Projects and Studies
	Task 3A – Explore opportunities for contracted project and studies.


	8b Title VI
	Title VI Plan update Memo
	Title VI 2020 update DRAFT 9.3.20
	I. Purpose
	II. Title VI
	Non-Discrimination Acts:
	Non Discrimination Executive Orders:

	III. Environmental Justice
	IV. Limited English Proficiency
	Factor 1
	Factor 2
	Factor 3
	Factor 4
	LEP Implementation Plan

	V. Title VI Coordinator
	VI. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Community Characteristics
	Race
	Low-Income
	Age
	Disabled

	VII. Charlottesville-Albemarle MPO Responsibilities and Strategies
	Communication and Public Participation
	Ongoing Activities
	MPO Policy Board and Committee Meetings:
	Transportation Planning Documents
	Communications with the Public and Community Organizations0F


	VIII. Discrimination Complaint Procedures
	Appendix A: Discrimination Complaint Form
	Appendix B: Language Use


	8c TIP Adjustment Memo Sept2020
	Signature:

	1 Agenda Sept 23 2020.pdf
	METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION POLICY BOARD
	SPECIAL NOTICE

	Matters from the Public: limit of 3 minutes per speaker
	4:30-4:45
	4:45-5:05
	5:05-5:20
	5:20-5:45
	 Update Title VI Plan Draft 
	 TIP Administrative Adjustment Memo

	5:45-5:50
	5:50-6:00
	Additional Matters from the Public

	Adjourn




